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          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Good morning,

          3  ladies and gentlemen.  Today the Health Committee

          4  will be discussing Intro 517, a local law that would

          5  restrict the use of trans fat in food prepared and

          6  served by New York City restaurants and food

          7  vendors. Trans fats, like partially hydrogenated

          8  vegetable oil, margarine and shortenings, are a

          9  serious threat to the citizens of the City of New

         10  York.  Eating foods prepared with trans fats can

         11  raise a person's bad cholesterol and lower a

         12  person's good cholesterol.  Among other things, this

         13  places individuals at a greater risk for heart

         14  disease, which is currently the number one cause of

         15  death in the City of New York.

         16                 Because New Yorkers get so much of

         17  their food prepared outside of their homes, the

         18  ingredients in that food really do matter.  It is

         19  vital that they be as healthy as possible. Banning

         20  trans fat is one step in that direction, and the

         21  fact of the matter is that restaurants can make food

         22  that tastes and looks great without using trans

         23  fats.

         24                 Healthy alternatives such as canola

         25  and corn oils exist and are becoming more and more
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          2  available.  Today we hope to hear from the

          3  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene about their

          4  plans for implementing the trans fat ban.  I am

          5  particularly interested in how the Department will

          6  work with restaurant owners to educate them about

          7  what trans fats are, what products they can no

          8  longer use, and what alternative products are

          9  available.

         10                 It is critical that the Department

         11  recognize that this work needs to be done with

         12  sensitivity to the language and cultural needs of

         13  particular restaurants and communities.

         14                 We want to give everyone a chance to

         15  be heard at today's Hearing, so we will be limiting

         16  testimony to two minutes for each witness.  I thank

         17  everyone in advance for their cooperation.  I would

         18  also like to thank my colleague, Council Member

         19  Peter Vallone, Jr. From Queens for championing this

         20  crucial public health issue, and I invite him to say

         21  a few words.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you

         23  Mr. Chair.  Since you mentioned how bad trans fats

         24  are, I won't into the merits of the bill.  I think

         25  we're all on the same page, and I think the Health
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          2  Department will go into even more specifics of how

          3  bad trans fats are for you.

          4                 I want to commend the Health

          5  Department for their actions with regard to trans

          6  fats.  By way of history, I think that people should

          7  know that we're not acting in reaction to what the

          8  Health Department, the Board of Health did.  This is

          9  something we were actually working on.  It was a

         10  legislation I introduced two months previous to the

         11  Board of Health action.  They didn't know what I was

         12  acting on.  I didn't know what Tom Frieden was

         13  planning, and I think it's just a case of great

         14  minds thinking alike or at least great minds on that

         15  side of the table.  I'm not so sure over here.

         16                 We, again, commend you for what

         17  you've done, and we look to support you here.  I

         18  want to thank Chair Joel Rivera.  He and I spent a

         19  lot of time sitting next to each other during Alan

         20  Jennings hearings discussing nutrition, so this may

         21  be an outgrowth of that.  But he's been in the

         22  forefront of these nutritional issues, and he's

         23  having this Hearing today and we thank him for that.

         24

         25                 In fact he and I are both very
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          2  concerned not only with reducing trans fat but with

          3  insuring that the ban is implemented fairly.  As

          4  we've seen already, the ban had been moved back a

          5  year when it comes to fried foods.  That's something

          6  that Joel Rivera and I supported, and we look

          7  forward today to hearing from the industry to see

          8  how we can most fairly implement this law.         The

          9  reason we're acting today, some people have asked me

         10  that, why are you doing that if the Board of Health

         11  has already done this?  Two- fold reason:

         12                 Number one, we want to strengthen the

         13  Board of Health's acts legally, take away any

         14  potential challenges to what they've done.

         15                 Number two, I think it sends a better

         16  message to the rest of this country and the rest of

         17  this world that we are serious about removing trans

         18  fats from our food.  We are firing a salvo here

         19  that's going to be heard nationwide, worldwide and,

         20  in fact, you can see the results already.  Since New

         21  York City has taken the actions it has, major chains

         22  such as KFC and McDonald's have announce they're

         23  removing trans fats.  If you walk around my

         24  neighborhood, I'm sure it's the same in Joel's,

         25  stores have signs up all over the place, Trans fat
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          2  free, zero trans fats in our oils. This is clearly

          3  something the Federal Government should have done,

          4  by the way, but they have dropped the ball again. It

          5  took them 10, 15 years even to get the food industry

          6  to label trans fats, so we weren't going to sit

          7  around and let more people die while they took no

          8  action on the Federal level.

          9                 So we here in New York City are

         10  leading the way. And you will see many other cities

         11  emulate us soon.  Some already have.  You'll see

         12  more companies on a daily basis eliminate trans

         13  fats, and it's all because of what the Board of

         14  Health has done, what we're doing here.  So I want

         15  to thank, again, the Board of Health, Chair Joel

         16  Rivera for everything that's you're doing.  I look

         17  forward to the Hearing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         19  much.  Before we hear the testimony, let me

         20  introduce our colleagues that are here today.  We

         21  have Council Woman Inez Dickens to our far left, and

         22  then our right Council Member Kendall Stewart,

         23  Council Member Maria Baez, Council Member Helen

         24  Sears and, as always, we have Counsel over here,

         25  Adira Engosh (phonetic), who will do phenomenal job.
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          2                 At this point in time we're going to

          3  call forward the Department of Health and Mental

          4  Hygiene Representatives, Dr. Mary Basset, Elliot

          5  Marcus, Dr. Sonia Angels and, of course, Dr. Lynn

          6  Silver as well.  You may choose the order in which

          7  you begin.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Good

          9  morning, Chairperson Rivera and Members of the

         10  Health Committee.  I'm Dr. Mary Bassett, the Deputy

         11  Commissioner for the Division of Health Promotion

         12  and Disease Prevention.

         13                 With your permission, I'll just

         14  proceed with our testimony after introducing those

         15  with me here today, who include Lynn Silver on my

         16  left, Assistant Commissioner for the Bureau of

         17  Chronic Disease Prevention and Control, Dr. Sonia

         18  Angell on my right, who is the Program Director for

         19  Cardiovascular Disease Prevention and Control, as

         20  well as Elliot Marcus, the Associate Commissioner

         21  for the Bureau of Food Safety and Community

         22  Sanitation.

         23                 On behalf of Commissioner Frieden,

         24  I'd like to thank you for the opportunity to comment

         25  on Intro 517, which prohibits the use of artificial
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          2  trans fats by food service establishments and mobile

          3  food unit commissaries.

          4                 This morning I will discuss the

          5  dangers of artificial trans fat, how restricting

          6  food service establishments from serving food

          7  containing artificial trans fat will reduce New

          8  Yorkers' exposure to an avoidable hazard associated

          9  with increased heart risk, and the Department's role

         10  in protecting New Yorkers from the dangers of

         11  artificial trans fat.

         12                 Artificial trans fat is produced

         13  through a process that adds hydrogen to vegetable

         14  oil, resulting in partially hydrogenated vegetable

         15  oil, or PHVO.  The most dangerous of fats, trans fat

         16  includes LDL, or bad cholesterol, and lowers HDL, or

         17  good cholesterol.  Trans fat has no known health

         18  benefits, and there is no safe level of artificial

         19  trans fat consumption.

         20            Based on the conservative estimates,

         21  artificial trans fat kills at least 500 New Yorkers

         22  annually, more than the number killed each year in

         23  motor vehicle accidents.

         24                 While trace amounts of natural trans

         25  fats are found naturally in meat and dairy products,
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          2  about 80 percent of the trans fat in our diets is

          3  artificial.  Artificial trans fats come from common

          4  sources that include foods fried in partially

          5  hydrogenated vegetable oil, margarine and vegetable

          6  shortening, prepared foods such as pre- fried french

          7  fries, taco shells, and doughnuts, baked goods such

          8  as pizza dough, crackers, cookies and pies, and pre

          9  mixed products like pancake and hot chocolate mix.

         10  All of these products can be made without artificial

         11  trans fat.

         12                 Food service establishments are an

         13  important source of daily food intake for New York

         14  City residents.  An estimated one third of daily

         15  caloric intake comes from food prepared outside of

         16  the home.  On average, Americans consume almost six

         17  grams of trans fat each day, and a single fast food

         18  meal can contain more than ten grams of trans fat.

         19  Currently, restaurant customers have no practical

         20  way of knowing whether or not the food they order

         21  contains artificial trans fat.  As a result, the

         22  continued presence of trans fat in restaurant foods

         23  represents an important cardiovascular risk for New

         24  York City diners.

         25                 The Department is charged with
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          2  preventing and controlling diseases, including

          3  chronic disease, which comprise the bulk of the

          4  disease burden in our City and State and Country, as

          5  well as ensuring food safety.  Doing so requires a

          6  comprehensive approach that utilizes a variety of

          7  educational, environmental and regulatory

          8  approaches.  While today we are protected from

          9  health hazards such as lead paint and asbestos,

         10  artificial trans fat remains a common hazard to

         11  which many of us are still regularly exposed.

         12                 In June 2005, the Department launched

         13  a trans fat education campaign calling on all food

         14  service establishments to voluntarily remove

         15  artificial trans fat from their food.  This campaign

         16  was supported by extensive educational outreach to

         17  food suppliers, consumers and to every licensed

         18  restaurant in New York City.

         19                 In addition, the Department added a

         20  trans fat education module to our Food Protection

         21  course at the Department's Health Academy, and

         22  information on trans fat was added to food safety

         23  inspection reports received by more than 9,000 food

         24  services establishments.

         25                 To assess changes in the use of
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          2  products containing trans fat, the Department

          3  conducted two surveys, one prior to the campaign and

          4  another nine months following the campaign.  In both

          5  surveys of restaurants in which the product content

          6  could be determined, the prevalence of use of

          7  artificial trans fat for frying, baking or as spread

          8  remained constant, with about half,  50 percent of

          9  food service establishments using trans fat, both

         10  before and after the educational campaign.

         11                 Since our initiative over the last

         12  several months, many nationwide chains have

         13  voluntarily reduced or eliminated their use of

         14  artificial trans fat.  As you mentioned, Mr. Chair,

         15  all Wendy's restaurants now fry with trans fat- free

         16  oils.  Kentucky Fried Chicken plans to switch all

         17  its U.S. fried chicken restaurants to trans fat-free

         18  cooking oils by April 2007, and, in January

         19  Starbucks stopped using trans fat in its baked goods

         20  in half of its 5,600 company-owned cafes in the

         21  United States.

         22                 While these efforts are laudable, we

         23  believe that every New Yorker has the right to be

         24  protected from the harmful effects of trans fat,

         25  regardless of the type of food they choose to eat
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          2  and regardless of the neighborhood in which they

          3  choose to dine.

          4                 Assuring healthy, safe dining options

          5  is a public health priority.  To that end, on

          6  December 5, 2006, the New York City Board of Health

          7  unanimously approved a measure to restrict the use

          8  of artificial trans fat in New York City food

          9  service establishments.  This measure received

         10  tremendous public support, with the Board of health

         11  receiving nearly 2,200 comments in support of the

         12  proposal, thirty times the number received in

         13  opposition. Major national health organizations,

         14  such as the America Medical Association, the

         15  American Heart Association, the American Diabetes

         16  Association, leading New York City medical

         17  institutions and many others expressed their

         18  support.

         19                 Under these new restrictions,

         20  beginning on July 1, 2007 all New York City

         21  restaurants will be required to switch to oils,

         22  margarines, and shortening used for frying or as a

         23  spread that have less than 0.5 grams of trans fat

         24  per serving.  Oils used to fry yeast dough or cake

         25  batter, are covered by the second deadline, 12
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          2  months later.  By July 1, 2008, all food products

          3  served in New York City food service establishments

          4  must stop using artificial trans fat.  Packaged food

          5  items still in the manufacturer's original

          6  packaging, when served to customers, will be exempt.

          7                 Intro. 517 would amend the

          8  Administrative Code to prohibit the use of

          9  artificial trans fat by food service establishments

         10  and mobile food unit commissaries.  The provisions

         11  included in this legislation mirror those recently

         12  adopted by the Board of Health, and, if passed,

         13  would make the Administrative Code consistent with

         14  the Health Code.  The Department appreciates the

         15  Council's interest in protecting those dining in New

         16  York City from the harmful effects of artificial

         17  trans fat.

         18                 Like lead in paint, artificial trans

         19  fat is unnecessary, replaceable and will not be

         20  missed.  Eliminating artificial trans fat from the

         21  menus of New York City's restaurants is necessary to

         22  protect diners from this hazardous substance and

         23  reduce their risk of cardiovascular disease.  We

         24  look forward to working with you to improve and

         25  protect the health of all New Yorkers.  Thank you,
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          2  again, for the opportunity to comment, and I'm happy

          3  to answer any questions you might have.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Is anybody else

          5  going to be testifying or it just -- that's it,

          6  sounds good.  I guess I'll kick off the line of

          7  questions.  First, I want to thank the Department of

          8  Health for being here and for their innovative

          9  approaches in protecting the well being of the

         10  citizens and residents of our City.

         11                 First and foremost, I know some of my

         12  colleagues have questions.  I'll just lead into a

         13  couple.  What sort of outreach is the Department of

         14  Health and Mental Hygiene conducting as it

         15  implements the trans fat ban?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  You're

         17  referring to the Health Code amendment?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Yes.  What type

         19  of outreach do you plan?  What was the initial

         20  outreach that was done over the past of years,

         21  because I do know that there has been some form of

         22  outreach to the restaurants, as inspectors have gone

         23  by to inform them of the voluntary ban and then

         24  leading up into this enforcement ban?  What type of

         25  outreach has been done, and what planning and what
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          2  outreach is going to be done from now until the day

          3  of enforcement?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Yes.

          5  With respect to the Health Code amendment, I'm

          6  please to inform the Committee that in the coming

          7  week an informational mailing be delivered to all

          8  licensed food service establishments and suppliers

          9  of the New York City food service establishments.

         10  That will have information about the Health Code

         11  amendment, which will take effect on July 1, 2007. This

         12  information will be accompanied by a cover letter

         13  that's from the Commissioner written in both Spanish

         14  and English, and it will also be available for those

         15  who so request in a number of different languages

         16  including Chinese, Korean, Arabic, Russian and

         17  Bengali.  This will give them information about how

         18  to pursue any questions that they may have.

         19                 You asked also what we've done in the

         20  past.  Well, the Health Academy, as I mentioned in

         21  the testimony, has included training on trans fat in

         22  its modules.  To date, as of December of last year,

         23  over 14,000 people had been trained in four

         24  languages including Spanish, English, Chinese and

         25  Korean.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  I guess one of

          3  the biggest questions besides this is, what sorts of

          4  alternative to trans fats are there?  I know we have

          5  the canola oil and the other variations, but how

          6  readily available are they?  How easily accessible

          7  are they to the smaller restaurant organizations out

          8  there?  What type of buying power?  Is there a cost

          9  difference that would be impacted to the

         10  restaurants?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Well

         12  among several of the large chains that have adopted

         13  healthier oils and replaced their trans fat

         14  containing oils, they've noted that it has been a

         15  cost neutral transition.  We believe that there are

         16  adequate healthy oils to replace trans fat

         17  containing oils for every food service establishment

         18  in New York City.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay, let me

         20  just rephrase my question, I guess.  The economy to

         21  scale always comes into play, so obviously a larger

         22  chain will have better buying power capability than

         23  a smaller restaurant within a local neighborhood

         24  that may not be part of a larger corporation.  My

         25  question primarily is how would the smaller
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          2  restaurant that does not have the buying power of a

          3  major entity, how would they fare in this situation?

          4    Is the cost still neutral, or is there significant

          5  increase in the cost?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Let me

          7  ask Dr. Silver to respond to this question.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  Lynn

          9  Silver, Assistant Commissioner for Chronic Disease

         10  Prevention and Control. I would recall to the

         11  Members of the Council, first of all, that our

         12  initial surveys found that our estimate was 9,000 of

         13  the 23,000 restaurants in the City were already

         14  operating without trans fat. These included a wide

         15  range of establishments from all cuisine types,

         16  including many, many small businesses.  So it's

         17  perfectly possible, feasible, cost acceptable to

         18  operate without trans fat.

         19                 The traditional vegetable oils like

         20  canola oil, soybean oil that are widely used by

         21  these establishments and represent a very acceptable

         22  and low cost alternative to trans fat. For places

         23  that need heavier duty, longer lasting fry oils,

         24  there are also a number of oils that while they are

         25  more expensive per can, last longer and therefore
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          2  have a similar level.

          3                 We believe that this will either be

          4  cost neutral or if the costs do increase, it will be

          5  a very small cost in relation to the overall pattern

          6  of expenditures for a restaurant, even a small

          7  restaurant.  Our contact to date with small

          8  restaurants tends to confirm this.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  I

         10  just have a couple of follow up questions.  The

         11  Department of Health has been very innovative in

         12  ways of cutting costs, especially with the one

         13  percent milk program and the reduced fat milk

         14  program in Bodegas and other establishments.  The

         15  Department of Health and the City of New York has

         16  used the buying power, I mean the sheer size of the

         17  City to negotiate lower costs for milk for these

         18  locations.  My question is, can the City of New York

         19  use the same model that it did for the one percent

         20  milk program and the same model it used for the

         21  prescription drug program for seniors in this

         22  situation since it obviously is a health related

         23  issue?  Can they use the sheer size and magnitude of

         24  the City of New York to negotiate lower cost fees

         25  for these oils to make it more cost neutral and not

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  incur a situation where the businesses are going to

          3  be put in a precarious situation?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  One

          5  aspect I can speak to was that there is now a joint

          6  effort that was coordinated by Speaker Quinn of the

          7  Council, together with Deputy Mayor Gibbs office to

          8  create the New York City Food Policy Task Force.

          9  One part of that task force is the group that will

         10  be looking at City procurement and all of New York

         11  City procurement is coming into line with the trans

         12  fat free approach.

         13                 The fact that such a large purchaser

         14  as the City is doing so is a significant contributor

         15  to helping to bring these products onto the market

         16  to make them available not only to large purchasers

         17  like ourselves but to smaller purchasers as well, we

         18  hope.  So that's one area.  For example, the whole

         19  school system has gone trans fat free, and that

         20  helps pull the market to a trans fat free pattern of

         21  supply.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay.  My final

         23  question is, one of the concerns of the major health

         24  organizations out there, I believe it's the American

         25  Cancer Society, is everybody applauded the switch
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          2  away from trans fat, but people are concerned from

          3  the alternative of saturated fats.  Because I

          4  believe history will show you that people switch

          5  from saturated to trans because they thought for the

          6  time being that it was healthier, then we realized

          7  it's not healthy at all.  It's actually worse for

          8  your DNA and RNA and other components of your body.

          9                 Now the switch, now people are

         10  concerned that the drastic immediate switch will

         11  increase the saturated fat usage. How are we

         12  combating that?  Besides the mailing that's going

         13  out in multiple languages, of course that's

         14  important, are we doing a massive outreach campaign?

         15    Are we holding seminars?  Are we working with the

         16  restaurant associations to educate and inform

         17  smaller restaurants who, of course, do not have the

         18  same capabilities of the larger entity to get

         19  educated on the different alternatives?  Are we

         20  doing things on a massive scale so that people do

         21  not inadvertently replace trans fats with saturated

         22  fats? Because that would be just replacing a bad

         23  situation with a bad situation.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Yes,

         25  thank you, Mr. Chair.  You raise a good point.
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          2  There is concern that people will replace trans fat

          3  with saturated fat.  In other words, replace one

          4  unhealthy fat with another.  I should start by

          5  pointing out that gram for gram trans fat is worse

          6  than saturated fat.  So that if there were a gram

          7  for gram replacement, we'd still be ahead if we had

          8  a replacement of trans fat with saturated fat from a

          9  health perspective.

         10                 Nonetheless, the Health Department is

         11  very concerned that people migrate to healthier oils

         12  and not to saturated oils. So all of our

         13  informational, educational materials, our training

         14  modules contain an emphasis on the selection of

         15  healthier oils and the oils that you've mentioned,

         16  canola, corn, soy oils.  So we are encouraging food

         17  service establishments to transition to healthier

         18  oils and to replace trans fat with healthier oils

         19  and not saturated fats.

         20                 Now we do have some examples.  We've

         21  been able to look, for example, I mentioned in the

         22  testimony that Starbucks has replaced the trans fats

         23  in its baked goods recently.  Looking at the

         24  publicly posted information that they have on their

         25  web sites, they made this transition to trans fat
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          2  free baked good products without raising, in fact,

          3  with lowering the saturated oil.  So that's

          4  encouraging.  I'd also note that people, for baked

          5  goods have until July of 2008 to make this

          6  transition.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Last but not

          8  least, the grace period from when this goes into

          9  effect to when actual penalties and fines will be

         10  imposed, what is that officially going to be?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  The

         12  grace period is a three month period so that July 1,

         13  the requirement that oils and margarines and

         14  shortenings be trans fat free goes into effect.

         15  There will be a three month grace period, so that

         16  fines won't be collected till October 1, of 2001

         17  (sic).  Violations will be issued but there will be

         18  no fines for the three month grace period.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay.  I'll

         20  reserve the right to ask any further questions until

         21  a later point in time.  At this point I want to ask

         22  my colleague, Council Member Peter Vallone, to ask a

         23  few questions.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you

         25  again, Mr. Chair. Again, thank everyone at that
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          2  table for your work in leading the way in this

          3  important initiative.

          4                 Chicago tried this before we did, and

          5  it didn't happen because the administration and the

          6  Council didn't work together in Chicago and fought

          7  each other and it doesn't exist there right now.  It

          8  exists here and will get even stronger here because

          9  of our cooperation.  I testified at your Hearing.  I

         10  know you took a lot of testimony that day and a lot

         11  of written testimony.

         12                 You made some changes after that,

         13  which we supported. Why did you make those changes?

         14  What did you learn that day to lead you to make some

         15  changes, such as increasing the time frame that was

         16  involved here?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Well,

         18  it's been clear that there'll be more difficulty in

         19  reformulating baked goods than in making an oil

         20  switch for switching margarines to trans fat free

         21  margarines or oils or shortenings.  So, I think

         22  you're referring to the decision to extend the

         23  period for fry doughs that include and cake batter.

         24  I would say that that was a result of discussions

         25  about the difficulty in reformulation.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  So, you

          3  basically listened to some of the concerns of the

          4  restaurant industry, and you made changes reflecting

          5  those concerns?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  We've

          7  consulted broadly in adopting the time frame for our

          8  health code amendment.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  It was

         10  originally supposed to be shorter than it was but

         11  now it's longer.  I'm trying to get some credit here

         12  actually.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  That's

         14  right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  You seem a

         16  little bit apprehensive about what I'm saying.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  No, no.

         18    I want to give credit to all the very many people

         19  who've given us input on this health code amendment.

         20

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I notice

         22  here, I just want to repeat this line in your

         23  testimony where you say that this legislation would

         24  make the Administrative Code consistent with the

         25  Health Code and that you support it, I assume.
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          2                 You also mentioned lead paint.  I

          3  wanted to actually reiterate that point.  People

          4  have asked us, why are you in this area?   The Board

          5  of Health shouldn't be there.  We shouldn't be

          6  there.  We have every right to be there because we

          7  do regulate in areas such as alcohol, as smoking.

          8  We have eliminated things like lead paint.  It is

          9  our job to protect the public from dangerous

         10  substances like those and like trans fats.

         11                 In fact, there is a health care

         12  concern here too. Many restaurants use trans fatty

         13  oils to save money, but it's money we then spend on

         14  health care costs.  That's why we're here today, and

         15  that's why you took your action to protect the

         16  people and to act in the best interest of the City.

         17  So we do have the right to do what we're doing.

         18                 The Chair went into many of the

         19  questions I was going to ask.  So I think what I'm

         20  going to do is just let some of my colleagues ask

         21  some questions and perhaps reserve the right to come

         22  back and ask some more. Thanks.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Of course.  Next

         24  we have Council Member Dickens, and then we have

         25  Council Member Sears thereafter.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you.

          3  Thank you, Chair, and thank you, Dr. Bassett, for

          4  your testimony, and my colleague got clarity because

          5  that was exactly my question, why the extension for

          6  the cake batter?  Can you give me some examples of

          7  the packaged food items that you referred to in your

          8  testimony and why they will be exempt?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  The

         10  kinds of packaged food items I'm talking about are,

         11  for example, like if you have some crackers in their

         12  original wrapping.  If they come in their original

         13  wrapping they would be exempt.  I'm not a lawyer, so

         14  I'm not sure that I can speak to the full legal

         15  ramifications, but it has to do with interstate

         16  commerce concerns.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  All right,

         18  thank you. Also, as a Council Member and a Member of

         19  this Committee, I'm trying to thoroughly understand

         20  this, but as a consumer I'm confused.  Can you

         21  please tell me something about trans saturated fat,

         22  poly unsaturated fat, trans fat?  I mean it's -- and

         23  which one is supposed to be in the diet and which

         24  one is not?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Only olive oil,
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          2  that's it.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Let's

          4  be clear that fat is a part of a healthy diet.

          5  Trans fat is an unusual fat among fats, so there are

          6  mono unsaturated fats, poly unsaturated fats, and

          7  saturated fats.  You've probably heard that we need

          8  to concern ourselves about the amount of saturated

          9  fat in our diet.  But fat is part of a healthy diet.

         10    But trans fat does not have to be part of any

         11  diet.  It is largely artificially created, and it

         12  can be eliminated from our diet, and that's what

         13  we're talking about here today.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  So it's an

         15  artificially made fat, the trans fat, and so is

         16  trans saturated and the poly unsaturated and mono

         17  saturated is that all?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  No

         19  trans fat, the bulk of trans fat in our diet is

         20  artificially created through a chemical process

         21  which involves putting oxygen through vegetable

         22  oils, sorry putting hydrogen through and

         23  hydrogenating vegetable oil.  The process of pushing

         24  hydrogen into the vegetable oils, it changes the

         25  molecular structure of that oil.  The way my staff
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          2  have explained it to me that I'm always able to

          3  understand, and I hope make it clear to you, is that

          4  the molecules actually become straighter, and when

          5  they're straighter, they're easier to stack, and

          6  when they stack, they can become more solid, which

          7  is why bakers and others like these products, and

          8  they also can sort of stack up in our arteries.  So

          9  they're an unhealthy configuration that's been

         10  artificially created by the act of hydrogenating

         11  vegetable oil.

         12                 The other oils that you mentioned are

         13  natural oils. There are among natural oils healthier

         14  oils. Then some are saturated.  Lard would be an

         15  example of sort of a prototype of a saturated fat,

         16  and then the healthier types of saturated fat.  I

         17  can refer you, if you'd like, I can give you a list,

         18  some of our public information.

         19                 But let me just read you, among mono

         20  unsaturated fats would include olive oil, canola

         21  oil, which is actually made from grape seed, peanut

         22  oil.  Among poly unsaturated oils, that would be

         23  corn and soy bean oil among others.  I think the

         24  take home message here is that trans fat we don't

         25  need, and we can eliminate it.  There are plenty of
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          2  healthier oils to replace it with.  We can take it

          3  out of our diet.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Well, thank

          5  you so much for that explanation.  I feel a lot

          6  better now.  The last question is about enforcement.

          7    Once all of this goes into effect, what

          8  enforcement does the Department have, and do you

          9  wait upon a consumer's complaint or what?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Well,

         11  the way the enforcement of the restaurant inspection

         12  process works is that restaurants are inspected once

         13  annually, and the restaurant inspectors have been

         14  trained in assessing the presence of trans fat in

         15  products in the food service establishment.  So this

         16  will be integrated into the restaurant inspection

         17  process.

         18                 Of course, we also rely on the public

         19  to be vigilant and report other concerns that they

         20  have, so there is a process whereby people can make

         21  complaints as well.  But the routine restaurant

         22  inspection process will be the vehicle for assuring

         23  compliance with the trans fat restriction.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Can consumer

         25  complaints be done through the 311?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

          4  much.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Sure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next we have

          7  Council Member Sears, and after her we have Council

          8  Member Arroyo and then Stewart.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair.  Good morning you've done a lot of work on

         11  this.  I just wanted to follow up.  When this goes

         12  into effect, and there are time frames for which it

         13  is to be effective, and if the monitoring is

         14  connected to the annual inspections, how do you go

         15  about that when it's passed that the compliance has

         16  already started?  Are you going back to when all

         17  these restaurants are due for their annual

         18  inspection, which means that you begin to look at

         19  what's coming up for inspection and they need to

         20  look for that compliance?  I'm not quite sure

         21  certain how that is going to actually -- how you're

         22  going to determine who is in compliance except

         23  through that process.  It seems to be that there is

         24  a lot of leeway then into when they do this and

         25  they're fitting into the time frame.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  The

          3  plan is to integrate this into the regular

          4  inspection process, and you're correct, we don't do

          5  that all on one day.  That will not be done all on

          6  one day.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Well, you know

          8  that since we're coming into the budget process, and

          9  if I may say this, you really need to know whether

         10  you have enough inspectors to do this, because this

         11  is the time to really look at that and not do with

         12  what you have and maybe for the beginning there may

         13  be some additional inspectors to keep within the

         14  time frame of which they are to be in compliance.

         15  Then go into that.

         16                 Because one of the things is before

         17  even the enforcement is the compliance of this law,

         18  and sometimes the non compliance within the time

         19  frame, they're supposed to do that, sends out a

         20  signal, and people seem to know what laws they can

         21  violate and what they can't and who will obey them

         22  and who won't in the time frame they have in which

         23  to do it.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Well

         25  let me ask Elliot Marcus to speak to this.  You
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          2  should know that people do not have scheduled

          3  inspections.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I know that.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  That at

          6  any moment you can be inspected.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  That's why I'm

          8  asking --

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  So that

         10  you can't plan on when you'll be inspected.  Mr.

         11  Marcus.

         12                 MR. MARCUS:  Good morning.  I'm

         13  Elliot Marcus, and I think Dr. Bassett just answered

         14  the question, which is that inspections are

         15  unannounced, so a restaurant won't know when

         16  necessarily when they're going to show up.  As with

         17  any possible health code violation, they're expected

         18  to comply with the regulations all the time, and so

         19  they will be running the risk of being cited and

         20  eventually receiving a monetary penalty for that

         21  citation.

         22                 So there will be that three month

         23  grace period, but before that, the information will

         24  be posted on our web site, so the public will know

         25  which restaurants will be continuing to use trans
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          2  fat based on our inspections up to that point.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  You may have

          4  answered this, and I don't know with my last

          5  question is that when I think of all the different

          6  ethnic restaurants in the City of New York, and

          7  certainly in the Borough of Queens, what is that

          8  communication, because I would assume that all of

          9  those restaurants, and they may not be members of

         10  the Restaurant Association?  In fact, I suspect that

         11  many of them are not.  They are good restaurants,

         12  and they're very careful, but they're probably not

         13  members of those associations, and the chances of

         14  their using trans fat are probably very strong.  So

         15  how are we going to deal with those numerous

         16  restaurants and not fast foods?  They're ethnic

         17  restaurants with different cultural ethnic foods

         18  that might have a very difficult time in compliance.

         19    How do we work with that?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  We have

         21  over 20,000 food service establishments that are

         22  licensed here in the City, and you're quite right

         23  the majority of these restaurants are not chain

         24  restaurants.  We use the fact that we have

         25  information about these restaurants because they are
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          2  required to be licensed to send information to them.

          3    So I mentioned earlier that we have a mailing that

          4  our food service operators will begin receiving next

          5  week that's going out in English and Spanish and

          6  will be available in a total of, I think, it's seven

          7  languages.

          8                 So we're endeavoring to assure that

          9  people will receive this information in their own

         10  language and that every licensed food service

         11  establishment will receive this information.

         12                 Now we have been reaching out, in

         13  part because of concerns that have been made,

         14  particularly regarding Latino restaurants, but all

         15  small neighborhood restaurants directly to them, and

         16  I'm going to ask Dr. Angell who's been reaching out

         17  to some of these restaurants to say a little bit

         18  about what she's found in contacting them.  I should

         19  make clear that this is not a formal survey.  This

         20  has been an effort simply to reach out, but it is

         21  interesting and may be reassuring to Council.

         22                 DR. ANGELL:  I'm Sonia Angell, I'm

         23  the Director of the Cardiovascular Disease

         24  Prevention and Control Program.  I'd just like to

         25  comment specifically on some concerns that we heard
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          2  around the differential impact that this might have

          3  on Latino restaurants in New York City.  So we

          4  actually did a concerted effort informal survey of

          5  restaurants, calling them, also using our Spanish

          6  speaking staff to be sure that we overcame any

          7  potential language barriers, and we reached over 70

          8  restaurants.  Of those, 20 were interested in

          9  discussing with us the oils that they were using.

         10  In fact, we found that none of them were using

         11  partially hydrogenated vegetable oils for frying,

         12  and only a very small handful were using margarine

         13  in some of their products.  We asked them if they

         14  would like assistance in reformulating, if they

         15  thought this would be difficult, and could we

         16  provide them assistance.  All of them declined

         17  assistance and said, we'll just talk to our

         18  suppliers and order margarine that's zero gram trans

         19  fat.

         20                 So our experience, both in this

         21  special outreach and over time, because as you know

         22  this has been a voluntary campaign, so we've been in

         23  contact with restaurants over time, is that this is

         24  something very feasible for restaurants to achieve,

         25  even our smaller restaurants.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  I think that

          3  certainly

          4  if -- the reason I ask that is because, and I never

          5  get parochial sitting here, if you take my district,

          6  which is the world of nations when it comes to

          7  restaurants, it would be very easy to help you by

          8  whatever it is you want them to read.  We would be a

          9  great source, and I think any Council Man or Woman

         10  would be a great source to have that information in

         11  the office because we eat in them.  I certainly eat

         12  in the restaurants in my district.  That would be a

         13  great source to give them whatever information it is

         14  you want them to have.  I think most Council Members

         15  would really probably do the same.  So I'll be happy

         16  to have that information in my office.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.

         18  We've also been joined by Council Member Helen

         19  Foster from the Bronx and Council Member Mike

         20  McMahon from Staten Island.

         21                 Before we go to the next questioner,

         22  I just have a quick question.  In light of recent

         23  events in terms of the inspectors, what type of

         24  training will they be receiving because I do know

         25  that because of what's happened over the past couple
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          2  of weeks and over the past couple of days, that the

          3  increase in violations, things of that nature, we

          4  want to make sure that the inspectors are obviously

          5  going to be well trained on the new protocols and

          6  procedures, and that they will be fair and just

          7  about their process.  So what type of increased

          8  training will they be receiving in terms of this

          9  situation?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Mr.

         11  Marcus, we have confidence in the training of our

         12  inspectors.  Let him describe it to you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  I hope so.

         14                 MR. MARCUS:  We will very shortly

         15  begin training them in the issues around trans fat

         16  and the enforcement process that will be followed,

         17  so that they may answer questions when they are out

         18  in the field between now and the time the ban will

         19  take effect.

         20                 They'll be called in for several

         21  training sessions. They'll receive information on

         22  the nature of trans fat and the scientific issues

         23  around trans fat as well as the enforcement issues.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Now I'm just

         25  also a little bit confused now, Sonia Angell, you're
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          2  in charge of the outreach?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  She's

          4  in charge of the Cardiovascular Disease Prevention

          5  and Control Program, which is in the Bureau of

          6  Chronic Disease Prevention and Control, which is in

          7  the Division of Health Promotion and Disease

          8  Prevention.  If we ever reorganize, I think we'll

          9  shorten our name.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  So Laura

         11  Stanley, who is Laura Stanley?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Laura

         13  Stanley will be working on the trans fat help line,

         14  which will be another source of information for food

         15  services establishment operators.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Where does she

         17  come from?  What qualifications does she have?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  She's

         19  worked in the food service industry for over 15

         20  years.  Sorry, we don't have an exact -- but she's

         21  going to be working on a sort of technical

         22  assistance trans fat help line that will be

         23  available to operators to get additional help in

         24  making their kitchens trans fat free.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  So is she a
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          2  specialist on trans fat?  Is she a scientist?  Is

          3  she a marketer, an advertiser, a media buyer?  I

          4  mean what is her actual function?  What is her

          5  actual qualifications?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Hang

          7  on, let me give this to Dr. Silver.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SILVER:  Thank

          9  you.  She'll be managing the project.  Like many

         10  complex projects, this project will be bringing in

         11  top national technical expertise from institutions

         12  around the country that have been working on

         13  reformulating products and finding healthier

         14  alternatives to trans fat.  So a project manager

         15  doesn't necessarily have to be a leading national

         16  expert.  They have to be a person who coordinates

         17  the process, that brings that expertise, and makes

         18  it available to our New York City food service

         19  establishments and that'll be her role.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay, so she's a

         21  project manager.  She's not the actual -- she's

         22  going to have brains on tap that'll be able to

         23  advise her.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  That's

         25  correct.

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  Next

          3  we have Council Member Arroyo, then Council Member

          4  Stewart then back to Council Member Vallone.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Good morning.

          6    I'm going to go back to the issue of enforcement

          7  because most recently we had a local eatery

          8  inspected, remained open, and one or two days later

          9  there is this issue about little critters running

         10  all over the place.  So how confident are you that

         11  this enforcement inspection process for something

         12  that's so new compared to regular inspections and

         13  finding droppings of all kinds of different things,

         14  how are you sure that this is not going to unravel?

         15                 MR. MARCUS:  Inspectors will be

         16  trained on what to look for when they enter an

         17  establishment, and as part of our routine inspection

         18  process already we do go into a pantry to look at

         19  the products inside the pantry.  For instance, if

         20  there are dented cans, that's a general violation

         21  unless it's on seam then it's a critical violation.

         22  So they already look at food suppliers and food

         23  sources, and they look at the products inside a

         24  restaurant's pantry.  Now they'll be just trained to

         25  look for whether or not the product has the words
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          2  trans fat or artificial trans fat or partially

          3  hydrogenated vegetable oil anywhere on its

          4  ingredient listing.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  So walk me

          6  through an inspection.  The inspector finds

          7  violations.  What is it that then happens?  What is

          8  it DOH expects to occur, and what is the time frame

          9  the establishment has to correct the violation?

         10                 MR. MARCUS:  If an artificial trans

         11  fat violation is cited, it will be cited separately

         12  from the typical inspection report. It will not be

         13  part of the sanitary inspection but part of a

         14  separate report that they create, much in the way

         15  that we cite smoke free air act violations

         16  separately from sanitary violations.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  So the

         18  correction process is different depending on the

         19  violation?

         20                 MR. MARCUS:  No, the correction

         21  process will be the same.  If someone receives a

         22  citation for that, we will perform a compliance

         23  reinspection anywhere between two and six weeks.  It

         24  usually averages around three to four weeks.  And we

         25  will continue to follow up until the trans fat
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          2  products are removed from the shelves.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  So the time

          4  frame is what? They get inspected today.  The

          5  violations are found, what's the follow-up?

          6                 MR. MARCUS:  Anywhere between two and

          7  six weeks they may receive a compliance inspection.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  So someone

          9  physically goes back out?

         10                 MR. MARCUS:  Someone will physically

         11  go back out.

         12  If they are in the penalty period, then we will

         13  issue a notice of violation, and they'll be subject

         14  to fines.  Fines will increase for accumulated

         15  infractions of the same violation.  And at some

         16  point if someone continues to flout the regulation,

         17  then we will proceed to seek permanent revocation or

         18  suspension.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Which means

         20  they close?

         21                 MR. MARCUS:  Which means we'll go to

         22  the Office of Administrative Tribunal hearings and

         23  ask that their permit be suspended or revoked, which

         24  means they would be closed, yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  And how long
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          2  does that take?

          3                 MR. MARCUS:  A couple of weeks.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  From the date

          5  of the inspection to the day you order an

          6  establishment closed is two weeks?

          7                 MR. MARCUS:  No, no. Anywhere between

          8  two and six weeks we'll perform a compliance

          9  inspection.  If they fail that compliance

         10  inspection, meaning that they still have artificial

         11  trans fat products on their shelves, we'll do

         12  another inspection.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Or mouse

         14  droppings?

         15                 MR. MARCUS:  Or mouse droppings.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Okay.

         17                 MR. MARCUS:  And at some point if

         18  they continue to fail, they will be closed.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  At some

         20  point.  My question is, what is the time Period that

         21  entails from beginning to end?

         22                 MR. MARCUS:  For --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  How often am

         24  I eating in this place that is consistently

         25  receiving violations, that I as a consumer don't
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          2  have a clue about, and DOH steps in and closes it

          3  down.  How long does that take?

          4                 MR. MARCUS:  For all other violations

          5  right now the process is at the third inspection,

          6  the second compliance inspection the third

          7  inspection in the cycle the restaurant would be

          8  closed.  So that could be six to twelve weeks

          9  approximately.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Okay, thank

         11  you. On the consumer end with this implementation of

         12  this code on trans fats, what am I as a consumer

         13  going to notice?  Because part of the enforcement

         14  includes consumer complaints.  How would I know if a

         15  restaurant is complying with the mandate, as a

         16  consumer?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Well,

         18  you raise an interesting point.  The consumer really

         19  shouldn't notice anything. They should go in and eat

         20  great food and the amounts and variety that they

         21  want.  So there is no labeling on the food.  They

         22  just go in and eat the food, and they should be

         23  assured that the food is trans fat free.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  So there's no

         25   --
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  The

          3  only way I can say --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: -- Relying on

          5  consumer complaints to help enforce the regulations.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT: -- This

          7  will be principally enforced through the process of

          8  inspection.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Of

         10  inspection.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  I

         12  suppose that as a consumer, if you're especially

         13  interested in this, you could say to the operator,

         14  what kind of oil do you use?  If they come out with

         15  something that contains trans fat, you can certainly

         16  call.  But the inspection will take place in the

         17  kitchen.  It will look at the ingredients, and those

         18  ingredients should contain less than 0.5 grams per

         19  serving of trans fat to be considered zero trans fat

         20  products.

         21                 So the consumer eating in the

         22  restaurant won't see us.  They can't tell now

         23  whether they're food is trans fat containing or not

         24  unless they take extra action.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  So the
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          2  expectation that through consumer complaints

          3  enforcement can be assured is not realistic in this

          4  case?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  That's

          6  right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  That's one of

          8  the things that was said that through consumer

          9  complaints that you would be able to also monitor

         10  compliance, and in this case, based upon what you

         11  said, consumer complaints cannot be relied on.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Our

         13  expectation is that the principal way that this will

         14  be enforced is in the restaurant inspection process.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Okay.  And,

         16  finally, a two part question, how ready are

         17  establishments for the transition?  Do you know if

         18  there are any that have expressed any concern about

         19  being able to be in compliance with whatever time

         20  frame has been laid out for the different

         21  implementation dates?  And restaurants are required

         22  to have this little certificate posted when you go

         23  in, and it has the picture of someone who took

         24  training in food preparation.  Is this an ongoing

         25  training program, and if it's not, why not?  So that
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          2  as these new things come into effect, that you're

          3  sure that every restaurant that is licensed in the

          4  City is receiving the appropriate training.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  To the

          6  best of my knowledge, we have not received any

          7  complaints by operators that they won't be able to

          8  comply with the July 1 requirement that they

          9  eliminate trans fat containing oils for the purpose

         10  of frying, shortenings and margarines from their

         11  restaurants.

         12                 You understand that the requirement

         13  requiring baked goods and fry dough and cake batter

         14  is not until July 1 of 2008.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Yes.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  So we

         17  are doing our best to reach out to restaurants.  I

         18  appreciate Council Member Sears' offer that the

         19  Council will help us in reaching out to restaurants,

         20  let them know about this, as I mentioned.  Every

         21  licensed food service establishment will be

         22  receiving an informational package in the coming

         23  week.  There has been a six month phase in period to

         24  the July 1 deadline.  We fully expect that

         25  restaurants will be able to comply with this
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          2  deadline.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  What about

          4  the training component?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Let me

          6  ask Mr. Marcus to speak to the training component.

          7  I think he's spoken about the training of

          8  inspectors.  You want to know --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  No, the

         10  owners.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  There's a

         13  training that's required.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  When I go

         16  into restaurants, I see a little certificate posted

         17  with somebody's picture on it. Is that an ongoing

         18  training requirement that the City has for

         19  restaurants, and, if not, why not when we have new

         20  things coming into effect that may be useful to all

         21  of us, in particularly the owners, to receive this

         22  ongoing training?

         23                 MR. MARCUS:  Currently, it's a one-

         24  time training requirement, but we're looking at

         25  revising that regulation at this point to require
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          2  re- training.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Thank you.

          4  When do you expect to have a decision on whether

          5  it's going to change or not?

          6                 MR. MARCUS:  I would expect within

          7  the next three months we'll know exactly when we'll

          8  be --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  So at some

         10  point in the future you'll come back to this

         11  Committee and tell us when that's going to get

         12  started, right?

         13                 MR. MARCUS:  Well, the people

         14  responsible for that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Well, yes, of

         16  course.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  I

         18  should reiterate that we do have training, we have

         19  ongoing trainings available, and we are making the

         20  trans fat helpline available also to operators, as

         21  well as in person trainings for the Health Academy.

         22  I mentioned in the testimony that over 14,000 people

         23  have been trained in four languages about trans fat

         24  through our Health Academy, so we do have ongoing

         25  trainings made available to operators, and we will
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          2  make both a telephone helpline available to them, as

          3  well as in person sessions training them on both the

          4  replacement and enforcement issues related to the

          5  Health Code amendment.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  But they're

          7  voluntary. They're not mandated.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  That's

          9  my understanding.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Okay.

         11                 MR. MARCUS:  The training sessions

         12  will be voluntary.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Okay.  Thank

         14  you, Mr. Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  Next

         16  we have Council Member Stewart, then back to Council

         17  Member Vallone.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair.  Good morning to each and everyone.  I

         20  want to follow up on a couple questions.  In part of

         21  your testimony you said that there is no safe level

         22  of artificial trans fat, but however, awhile ago you

         23  said that the 5 grams -- if you go in and find 5

         24  grams, you'll consider that zero.  Could you

         25  explain?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Well,

          3  you can think of two different types of trans fat.

          4  There's artificial trans fat, and there's naturally

          5  occurring trans fat that can occur in both meat and

          6  dairy products.  The Health Code amendment refers

          7  only to artificial trans fat and doesn't refer to

          8  naturally occurring trans fat.  You are right.  The

          9  sort of, received wisdom and the expert review on

         10  trans fat suggests that there is no safe level of

         11  trans fat, but it's impossible to eliminate

         12  naturally occurring trans fat entirely from our

         13  diet.

         14                 The standard of 0.5 grams per serving

         15  is one that's used by the Food & Drug

         16  Administration.  Any food product that has less than

         17  0.5 grams per serving can be marketed as a zero

         18  trans fat containing product.  So when you see in

         19  stores something labeled as zero trans, it means

         20  that it meets that standard of 0.5 grams.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I see

         22  several problems in terms of frozen food.  The bill

         23  states basically, it will prohibit foods containing

         24  artificial trans fat from being stored, distributed,

         25  held for service, used in preparation for any menu
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          2  item or served by any food service establishment or

          3  by any mobile food unit commissary.  This provision

          4  would not apply to food that is served directly to

          5  patrons in a manufactured original, sealed package.

          6                 I see that as a problem for us in

          7  terms of the poor neighborhoods.  A high percentage

          8  of those folks, they get their food from the

          9  restaurant that is frozen.  What we are doing here

         10  is that saying, listen, we're not doing anything for

         11  these folks in the poor neighborhood.  We're going

         12  to do for the other areas.  I see that as a problem.

         13    Why not, at least, if you're going to do some sort

         14  of a restriction, you do it for the poor

         15  neighborhood also?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Let me

         17  clarify what we mean by, in its original packaging.

         18  It really refers to something that's wrapped up as

         19  you bought it.  So, for example, if you had crackers

         20  in their original packaging, or a muffin in its

         21  original packaging --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Excuse me, a

         23  lot of the restaurants, not restaurants, but we're

         24  talking about supermarkets, they sell frozen, fried

         25  food.  A lot of frozen, fried food in packages, so
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          2  that's what I'm asking about.  Why is it that is not

          3  considered if you're going to do some sort of a

          4  restriction?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Well,

          6  first of all, we're not regulating what's sold in

          7  the supermarket.  Their consumers have the nutrition

          8  label.  If you're talking about sort of pre-

          9  prepared foods, which come to the restaurant in a

         10  frozen form, which are then taken out of their

         11  packaging, and sort of have an additional food

         12  preparation step, this happens often with things

         13  like french fries or tacos.  Once it's taken out of

         14  that original packaging and undergoes a further food

         15  preparation step in the restaurant, the regulations

         16  apply.  That's considered a product that's been

         17  taken out of its original packaging.

         18                 So in order for it to be exempted

         19  because it's in its original packaging, it has to be

         20  delivered to the consumer in its packaging.  So a

         21  frozen meal that has the cover taken off and is

         22  heated up in a microwave and is put on a plate has

         23  been removed from its original packaging.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So what you

         25  are saying then, what you are saying basically then
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          2  is that we are going to inspect those foods that are

          3  being sold in supermarkets that has trans fat?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  No, I

          5  should be very clear that the Health Code amendment

          6  applies only to food service establishments.  It

          7  does not apply to supermarkets.  It does not apply

          8  to prepared foods that are offered for sale in

          9  supermarkets.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I get your

         11  point.  But what I'm saying basically is this, is

         12  that we are not catering for the folks in the poor

         13  neighborhood who will not have the opportunity to

         14  say, we'll let's go to a fancy restaurant.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  No,

         16  that is not correct, Mr. Stewart.  This regulation

         17  applies to every food service establishment, whether

         18  it's a corner restaurant in a poor neighborhood,

         19  whether it's a mobile vendor selling food out of the

         20  back of a truck, whether it's a high- end restaurant

         21  in lower Manhattan.  It applies to every licensed

         22  food service establishment.  It will offer

         23  protection to all New Yorkers when they eat out,

         24  whether they're rich or poor, and no matter what

         25  restaurant they eat in, no matter what neighborhood
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          2  they come from, this applies to all food service

          3  establishments.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right. I

          5  understand food service establishment, but you are

          6  saying basically that the foods like, for example,

          7  buffalo wings that are being sold out of BJ's, that

          8  has been fried and prepared already and in the

          9  package, someone can go and buy it there from that

         10  BJ's, and it may have been prepared with trans fat,

         11  that's what you're saying?  And that you don't cover

         12  that?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  The

         14  only exempted products that ones that are sold in

         15  their original manufacturer packaging.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right, so --

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Not in

         18  the restaurant packaging, in the manufacturer's

         19  packaging.

         20                 MR. MARCUS:  If BJ's is a supermarket

         21  or grocery store, we have no jurisdiction there.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Well, that's

         23  what I'm saying.  You're saying exactly what I'm

         24  saying.  In restaurants they will be selling buffalo

         25  wings and all of those things that are prefried and
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          2  pre- prepared, and all one has to do is to warm it

          3  up.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  The

          5  minute you take it out and warm it up, it's out of

          6  its original packaging.  When you put it on a plate,

          7  it's out of its original packaging, and the Health

          8  Code amendment will apply.  I'm sorry to interrupt

          9  you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, all

         11  right, I agree with what you're saying, but you

         12  saying two things at the same time.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  No,

         14  perhaps I'm not being clear.  What this means is

         15  that if it comes somehow precooked to a restaurant

         16   --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Not a

         18  restaurant.  It comes to a supermarket.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  No, the

         20  supermarket. I can't help you with the supermarket.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Well, that's

         22  what I'm saying.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Unless

         24  it's a supermarket that's licensed to sell food.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Council Member,
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          2  if I can.  I think the problem that we have here is

          3  that supermarkets are regulated by the federal

          4  government.  They're not regulated directly by the

          5  state.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  But

          7  they're not under our local jurisdiction.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  What I'm going

          9  to ask the Department of Health to do is forward all

         10  the information they can to us and to the Council

         11  Committee so we can proceed on another night in

         12  questioning from the members.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I want to

         14  follow up on another question.  We did not say

         15  anything about the sale of trans fat oils in terms

         16  of the bill.  I would like to know, because there

         17  might be these large places.  Take, for example,

         18  BJ's again might be selling it to folks who might be

         19  using it in their homes.  To be considered dealing

         20  with the fact that this oil is being sold, we only

         21  spoke about restaurants that are using it.  We did

         22  not speak about it being sold by the these big

         23  companies that just sell in quantities.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  I'm not

         25  sure that I completely follow your question here,

                                                            60

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  but --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Wholesale

          4  places.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  The

          6  wholesalers can sell whatever sorts of oils are

          7  available on the market, but the food service

          8  establishments in New York City, because of the

          9  decision to restrict trans fat in our City, will not

         10  be buying the trans fat containing oil to prepare

         11  their foods.  I expect that this will have an effect

         12  on the market availability of trans fat free oils.

         13  We are seeing the market shift to trans fat free

         14  oils because of the demand for them, and that shift

         15  we expect will continue to accelerate.  The concern

         16  that there are not adequate supplies of trans fat

         17  free oils is not one that we share.  We think that

         18  every food service establishment will be able to

         19  identify and purchase healthy oils for the

         20  preparation of foods for their patrons.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Your

         22  information about what artificial trans fat does in

         23  terms of, you said it kills at least 500 New Yorkers

         24  annually.  Can you tell me where you get these

         25  studies from so that I can read it up?  Because
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          2  we're talking about the dangers of trans fat, but I

          3  would like to know the studies, who have done the

          4  studies, where it was done.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  I would

          6  be happy to forward them to you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

          8  The last question I have basically is, have you ever

          9  considered linking the dangers of MSG with the use

         10  of trans fat and all of the other things and at

         11  least put it in the same category?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  No.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  I

         15  haven't thought of that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you,

         18  Council Member. We're going to come right back to

         19  Council Member Vallone.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chair.  I want to thank Maria del Carmen Arroyo

         22  for bringing up enforcement and inspection to be

         23  assured that we're trans fat free.  We have to work

         24  on trans rat free, apparently.  I am going home now.

         25    That was ugly.  I do have to leave soon to take my
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          2  daughter to the doctors. I want to thank the

          3  restaurant industry, who hasn't been mentioned yet.

          4  I know they're going to testify after this, and

          5  they've been helpful in the drafting of these

          6  regulations.  That's not the same case elsewhere in

          7  the country where they've vehemently opposed this

          8  type of bill.  But here they've been helpful.  So

          9  when history records that the fight to reclaim our

         10  bodies from trans fat started here in New York City,

         11  that fight began with the Administration, the

         12  Council and the cooperation of the food industry.

         13                 They will be testifying though, and I

         14  think you just may have mentioned some of their

         15  concerns about supplies, but I wanted to bring that

         16  up.  They will be testifying.  They are probably

         17  going to bring up, I anticipate, questions about, or

         18  concerns about complying in time for the deadlines.

         19  There's statements about lack of supply about

         20  apparently perhaps recipes which not be able to be

         21  reconfigured by then.  I know you've done a lot of

         22  research and taken a lot of testimony with regard to

         23  those concerns.  I wanted to address them before we

         24  hear from them later.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Your
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          2  question is whether we believe that the market is

          3  adequately resourced in terms of trans fat free

          4  oils?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  That's the

          6  first part.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  So that

          8  the food service establishments in New York City

          9  will be able to obtain these oils.  Well, the answer

         10  is yes.  We believe that the market is adequately

         11  resourced in trans fat free oil.  I'm not aware of

         12  any operator, including the large chains which have

         13  really been moving to go trans fat free in advance

         14  of the Health Code amendment timeline.  I'm not

         15  aware of any operator who says that they are unable

         16  to obtain trans fat free products for the July 1

         17  deadline.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Is there any

         19  other concern that you have heard that might

         20  substantiate for any reason extending the deadline?

         21  For example, recipes which need to be reconfigured

         22  or any other concern you've heard throughout the

         23  extensive testimony you've taken and research you've

         24  done that would lead you to extend it any further

         25  than you have?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  No.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay.  It's

          4  also important to note that, as I said, some

          5  restaurants will be making that claim, some won't.

          6  I think Sylvia's is here, and fine dining

          7  establishments, which for a long time has been trans

          8  fat free, and there are many others like that, as

          9  you have mentioned, who have been trans fat free for

         10  a long time, or who will be soon and completely

         11  support this measure.  I believe some will also be

         12  testifying.

         13                 Again, I wanted to thank the food

         14  industry because I may not be here.  In other cities

         15  they had commercials like little children with ice

         16  cream cones being slapped out of their hands.

         17  That's clearly not what we're doing here.  We may

         18  actually be saving the lives of those little

         19  children and giving them ice cream cones that taste

         20  exactly the same way.  They just won't be as bad for

         21  them as they were in the past.  Again, thank you for

         22  your efforts.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you,

         24  Council Member Vallone.  Next we have Council Member

         25  Foster.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Good morning.

          3    Two quick questions.  For supermarkets like whole

          4  foods, which actually sells cooked foods, they would

          5  be under your jurisdiction for trans fat free food?

          6                 MR. MARCUS:  No, they're under the

          7  jurisdiction of New York State Agricultural Markets.

          8    Our agreement with New York State Agriculture and

          9  Markets is that if, for instance, a delicatessen

         10  sells both ready- to- eat food as well as grocery

         11  items, depending on the percentage of sales of the

         12  ready- to- eat food versus the grocery items, either

         13  one of us may have jurisdiction over them.  So if

         14  more than 50 percent of their sales are a result of

         15  ready- to- eat items, it would be the New York City

         16  Department of Health's responsibility to regulate

         17  them.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Interesting.

         19  So how about like all around here we have the

         20  buffets, but they also sell wrapped up food.  Do

         21  those come under your jurisdiction?  Like Olivia's

         22  or all the places around here that actually serve

         23  cooked food, but also have, like you could buy a box

         24  of cereal or milk?

         25                 MR. MARCUS:  Most of them around here
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          2  would come under our jurisdiction.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  That's

          4  interesting.  Okay, and lastly, has there been

          5  thought about having restaurants, and maybe the

          6  restaurant industry can speak to this, actually

          7  putting signage up, we're trans fat free, so that

          8  the consumer -- you know how you were mentioning you

          9  could ask what your oil is, or what do you cook in.

         10  I mean, if someone said to me, I cook in blah, blah,

         11  blah, I wouldn't necessarily know if it had trans

         12  fat in it or not.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Council Member,

         14  I think that falls under menu labeling, and we'll

         15  keep that discussion to another day.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  No, no.  I'm

         17  not -- that's different.  I'm not saying labeling.

         18  You know how you go by Chinese restaurants, and

         19  they'll say no MSG?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  It's a

         21  thought.  We hadn't thought of that.  But certainly

         22  the industry, since the FDA has required the

         23  inclusion of information about trans fat content in

         24  foods, you see all over supermarkets information

         25  about whether products are considered zero gram
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          2  trans fat or not.  So that's something that the

          3  industry may consider.  We hadn't planned to put on

          4  a sticker saying this is a trans fat free

          5  restaurant.  That's something that everyone will be

          6  able to be assured of when they walk into a

          7  restaurant beginning in July of this year.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Last

          9  question, if you're in a supermarket that sells deli

         10  meat that takes it out of the wrapping and cuts it,

         11  it still comes under the agriculture and the

         12  supermarket aspect and not you, correct?

         13                 MR. MARCUS:  That's correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Okay.  But

         15  the deli would be like the places down here, then

         16  they would come under your jurisdiction, right?

         17                 MR. MARCUS:  That's correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Okay.  Thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  Next

         21  we have Council Member Dickens, and I believe that

         22  will be all for this panel.  Thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chair, but my question was asked by my

         25  colleague.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  I see no other

          3  questions.  I want to thank the Administration for

          4  being here and for answering the lengthy questions

          5  that we have.  Obviously, there may be more, and I'm

          6  pretty sure Council Members will just forward them

          7  to you, and then we'll have an open dialogue outside

          8  the Hearing.  Thank you very much.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BASSETT:  Thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: At this point in

         12  time we're going to be putting people on the two

         13  minute clock because we do have an extensive amount

         14  of people that do want to testify.

         15                 The next panel will consist of Chris

         16  Giarraputo from B.R. Guest, Inc.  Next, and I do

         17  apologize if I mess up the pronunciation of these

         18  names, Mr. H. Kenneth Woods from Sylvia Restaurant

         19  and Sam Barbieri from Waterfront Ale House.

         20                 Do we have the other individuals here

         21  from Sylvia's and from the Waterfront Ale House?

         22  Then we'll begin from there? Fine restaurants in the

         23  City of New York.  So we have the Ale House.  I

         24  guess we'll start off with Chris, then go to Kenneth

         25  Woods, then go to Sam.  If you have testimony, just
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          2  give it to the Sergeant- at- Arms, and we'll

          3  distribute it to us up here.

          4                 MR. GIARRAPUTO:  I don't have copies.

          5    Good morning, I'm Chris Giarraputo.  I'm the

          6  Corporate Executive Chef for B.R. Guest restaurants

          7  in New York City.  We have 14 restaurants, multi

          8  concept, Mexican, seafood, Italian, Pan Asian

          9  restaurants.  We've been working very extensively

         10  with the Department of Health in originally drafting

         11  this legislation trying to make it business friendly

         12  and actually be able to execute it in a way that

         13  would both impact the health of the City of New York

         14  in a positive way but also be something that the

         15  restaurants actually do.

         16                 In researching this issue, B.R. Guest

         17  has easily found products that are equal to or

         18  superior to in quality to products that contain

         19  trans fats.  We easily found replacements for such

         20  items as solid shortening that we use in baking,

         21  cooking oils and precooked french fries.

         22  Restaurants similar to us should have no issues in

         23  finding products that are able to be trans fat free.Since

         24  this initiative has been adopted, more and more

         25  distributors are stocking trans fat alternatives and
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          2  the prices are coming down.  Just looking at

          3  advertisements in food related magazines and reading

          4  labels in supermarkets, will show the heightened

          5  awareness in the food processing industry and the

          6  strong pressure of the marketplace to replace trans

          7  fats in processed foods with natural trans- fat-

          8  free oils.

          9                 Processed food manufacturers still

         10  haven't caught onto the need to go to non-

         11  hydrogenated oils containing no trans fats will feel

         12  even more pressure because of the proposal the Board

         13  of Health adopted, and it will go a long way to

         14  educating consumers, distributors and consumers

         15  alike.

         16                 I support the City Council in its

         17  addressing this issue and would be happy to answer

         18  any questions that you might have.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         20  much, and thank you for being exactly on the clock.

         21  Next we have Mr. Kenneth Woods from Sylvia's.

         22                 MR. WOODS:  Hello, my name is H.

         23  Kenneth Woods.  I'm the President and CEO of Sylvia

         24  Woods, Inc., Sylvia's Restaurant that's located in

         25  the Harlem community.  I am the son of the original
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          2  Sylvia.  We've been in the Harlem community for 45

          3  years, and we are a small business that is located

          4  in Harlem.  We're not a franchise.  Early on, some

          5  time ago, I spoke to my Council Person, Ms. Dickens,

          6  who is a frequent guest of Sylvia's, and her father

          7  goes back to my parents as very close family

          8  friends.

          9                 Sylvia's, being a world renowned

         10  restaurant, took initiative quite some time ago to

         11  see how we could serve more healthy cuisine.  We're

         12  from a community that has played with hypertension,

         13  heart disease and things of that nature, so we made

         14  a conscious decision by research to see how we could

         15  serve a healthier product without substituting taste

         16  and quality.

         17                 When the Department of Health

         18  approached us, we had already made a decision

         19  without legislation to have trans- fat- free oil.

         20  We had been cooking with soy bean oil that was trans

         21  fat free for quite a number of years.  We did have

         22  some issues with some of the shortenings, and I

         23  spoke to, at one of the meetings, I spoke to

         24  Christopher, who is the executive chef that just

         25  testified, he also was assisting me on a product for
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          2  my baked goods, which are the shortenings.

          3                 Now I'm not saying that there is no

          4  problem at all with the transition because

          5  margarines, we found a spread without trans fat.

          6  Some of the margarines are not readily available and

          7  there is not a wide range of shortenings that are

          8  available, just a few.  But I'm certain that the

          9  industry will be making that available for a short

         10  period of time.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  If you could

         12  start wrapping up, Mr. Woods.

         13                 MR. WOODS:  Yes. That's basically it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you, Mr.

         15  Woods.

         16                 MR. BARBIERI:  Hello, my name is Sam

         17  Barbieri, and I operate two small neighborhood

         18  restaurants in Brooklyn and Manhattan.  We do a fair

         19  amount of deep frying, and we always have used non-

         20  trans- fat oils.  We always use a soy bean and

         21  canola oil. We make all our goods in house, so we

         22  don't really have a large problem with finding

         23  products that are zero trans fats although we have

         24  gotten mailings from the Department of Health in

         25  terms of posters and little cards which I've given
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          2  to my chefs, and they've become much more conscious

          3  of the products that they are buying.  They look at

          4  all the nutritional labels on the products that we

          5  receive.  It's helped us buy products that have less

          6  saturated fat and less sodium in addition to being

          7  zero trans fat. We've also spoken to a couple of our

          8  broadline suppliers who had some products that were

          9  trans fat but little by little they're switching

         10  over.  They realize that it's going to be not only

         11  New York City but it's going to be a lot of other

         12  large cities.  I think it's a good step that we're

         13  taking.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         15  much.  I guess my colleagues will just have a couple

         16  of questions.  Mr. Woods, you mentioned there was

         17  some difficulty for finding alternatives for the

         18  shortening and the other products for the baked

         19  goods?  What type of difficulties?

         20                 MR. WOODS:  Well, most of the

         21  suppliers that I've been using for many, many years

         22  were not able to supply me.  So I had to go out of

         23  my normal range of distribution in order to receive

         24  the particular shortening.  Also the margarines,

         25  some of the distributors, and I do get supplies from
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          2  some major distributors such as U.S. Foods, and they

          3  have not yet been able to supply margarines and

          4  things of that nature.  I'm sure that it will be

          5  forthcoming.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  How many

          7  distributors are out there that you know of as a

          8  restaurateur?  How many distributors, suppliers are

          9  there in this industry that deliver to New York

         10  City? Do you know?

         11                 MR. GIARRAPUTO:  New York City is a

         12  unique kind of market because it's really made up of

         13  a lot of smaller distributors.  When you go outside

         14  of New York City, most of the major cities are

         15  served by things like Cisco, Craft, U.S. Foods.

         16  There are just maybe five or six major distributors

         17  that handle a wide range of products, but in New

         18  York City those have less of a presence.  There are

         19  more smaller distributors that are more specialized

         20  in the products that they handle.

         21                 There are many more of them than just

         22  those five or six, but we found with our

         23  distributors that we have that after we made the

         24  initial inquires, close to a year ago when we first

         25  had these discussions with the Department of Health
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          2  when they were first drafting these regulations,

          3  they had questions about what exactly we needed.

          4                 It took them time to do a little

          5  research.  I think in the last six months, certainly

          6  since the legislation has been passed, we've had no

          7  issues in getting any product or having even the

          8  smaller distributors.  They're all very much aware

          9  of the products and very much aware of the issues.

         10  They are finding it easier and easier to find the

         11  national distributors, the national manufacturers

         12  who are able to supply now where six months a year

         13  ago, they were ignorant of the issue.

         14                 Crisco a year ago was a solid

         15  shortening that's used in every home and many, many

         16  bakeries.  It was a product that contained, was all

         17  hydrogenated oil.  Now they've come up with a

         18  formulation that is zero trans fat, and they like it

         19  so much they're discontinuing there old formulation.

         20    So it's just a matter of making people aware,

         21  creating a demand, having the demand met and then we

         22  go from there.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  So it's not that

         24  there is a general shortage.  It's just that the

         25  smaller suppliers needed the opportunity to buy from
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          2  the larger distributors the alternatives to the

          3  trans fat.

          4                 MR. GIARRAPUTO:  Frozen french fries,

          5  for instance, is a product that we weren't even

          6  aware had hydrogenated oils when they were precooked

          7  in hydrogenated oils, but through our research we

          8  found to our surprise they contain hydrogenated

          9  oils, many of them, even the high quality ones.  We

         10  went back to the manufacturers and said, New York

         11  City is planning on creating this regulation, how

         12  are you going to meet the demands of the major

         13  market place of New York?  They told us they had

         14  already been doing research on it and now most of

         15  the manufacturers have trans fat free french fries

         16  that are available here in New York City.  Most of

         17  the vendors supply them, have them on their shelves

         18  and are supplying them now.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Now question,

         20  what's the cost difference?  Is there a cost

         21  difference if they make one general product for the

         22  nation and then an alternative for the City, or is

         23  it cost neutral for you as a restaurant owner?

         24                 MR. GIARRAPUTO:  Initially, when they

         25  were bringing in the products initially, and we were

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  one of the few who were asking for them, sure the

          3  prices were higher, but we have found a steady

          4  decline in the pricing since this issue has come

          5  forth.

          6                 MR. WOODS:  I had some of the same

          7  experience.  The frying oil, the vegetable oil we

          8  had just a slight cost difference. The shortenings

          9  were a little more difficult.  The margarines were a

         10  little more difficult and a little more costly, but

         11  they are coming down now.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Between the

         13  three restaurants here, what's the difference in the

         14  nature of the foods?  We know Sylvia's pretty well.

         15  B.R. Guest?

         16                 MR. GIARRAPUTO:  We cook everything

         17  basically from scratch.  We don't use any process.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  What type of

         19  cuisine?

         20                 MR. GIARRAPUTO:  We have Mexican

         21  restaurants.  Dos Caminos are Mexican restaurants.

         22  We have seafood restaurants, Blue Order Grille, Blue

         23  Fin, Ocean Atlantic Grille in Manhattan.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  I like Blue Fin.

         25                 MR. GIARRAPUTO:  Thank you.  We have
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          2  Italian restaurants, Fiama and Vento, Pan Asian,

          3  Ruby Foos, so we have a wide range of cuisines that

          4  we do.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  I guess my

          6  question pretty much is, we know Sylvia's is soul

          7  food, and you know more into a certain type of

          8  cuisine that may not be the same for other

          9  restaurants that may not be experiencing this.  So

         10  what I'm trying to get at, is there a difference in

         11  the experience from restaurants that sell more

         12  ethnic foods opposed to restaurants that don't sell

         13  ethnic foods in their experience in purchasing these

         14  alternatives?  Because from what I'm hearing, there

         15  may be a slight difference in cost and availability

         16  of the products.

         17                 MR. WOODS:  I'm not really sure.

         18  Chris and I, we had a conversation on a couple of

         19  occasions.  As a matter of fact, I will be speaking

         20  to him again to find out what his experience with

         21  their suppliers.  I know that my particular

         22  suppliers were having some difficulty in finding the

         23  particular products, and there was some slight cost

         24  difference, especially in shortenings and

         25  margarines, things of that nature.  Because at one
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          2  point I thought I would have to use the butter blend

          3  on certain items and whole butter on other items.

          4  But the blends contain these saturated fats.  We did

          5  have some issues, but the cost, I really see them

          6  starting to come down.  I don't see that they are so

          7  widely available, but I will be speaking to Chris

          8  right after this.

          9                 MR. GIARRAPUTO:  Interesting, Kenneth

         10  and I had a conversation about shortening a few

         11  months ago, and at that time Crisco didn't have

         12  their trans fat free formulation yet.  So we were

         13  using an organic product that was more expensive.

         14  We don't use a lot of shortening in our baking, but

         15  for some of our biscuits that we serve we were using

         16  shortening so we're using an organic product that

         17  was trans fat free, but since then other

         18  manufacturers have come up with formulations.

         19  Again, it's the pressure of the marketplace are

         20  making the manufacturers realize that they need to

         21  provide products that are going to meet these

         22  regulations.  It's the wave of the future.

         23                 CHAIRMAN RIVERA:  Okay.  That will be

         24  the end of my line of questioning.  We have Council

         25  Member Arroyo, then Council Member Dickens.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Not so much a

          3  question, well yes, I get it that you're supporting

          4  this legislation.  I don't want to assume.  I didn't

          5  hear you speak against it.

          6                 MR. GIARRAPUTO:  Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  The comment

          8  is just to express appreciation to the three of you

          9  as representatives of the food industry that you

         10  consciously have moved us in a direction of

         11  healthier eating despite the fact there was no law

         12  that required you to do that.

         13                 For me certainly helps me feel more

         14  confident that our restaurant owners are out there

         15  doing the right thing, because the perception can be

         16  easily formed that your out to make a buck and

         17  really don't care.  So I want to just say thank you

         18  for your proactive approach in this process.

         19                 MR. WOODS: Thank you.

         20                 MR. BARBIERI: Thank you.

         21                 MR. GIARRAPUTO: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next, Council

         23  Member Dickens.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chair.  And I thank all of you for your
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          2  testimony and I too commend you and thank you for

          3  serving healthier foods to our communities.

          4                 Mr. Woods, question because you are

          5  indeed a small restaurant, one restaurant.  I heard

          6  you mention that there was some price difference but

          7  that the prices were coming down.  Has that price

          8  difference been such that you have passed that on to

          9  the consumer?  That's part one.  The other part is,

         10  have you found that there is a significant

         11  difference in taste or the culinary properties when

         12  you use products that contain trans fat versus those

         13  that do not?  And I ask this of you because soul

         14  food cooking uses a lot of oils in both baking and

         15  preparation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  It tastes very

         17  good by the way.

         18                 MR. WOODS:  Okay.  Let me answer your

         19  first question.  Some years ago we really took a

         20  sort of effort to make our food healthier because of

         21  the consciousness that we have for our community.

         22  That hypertension, heart disease that raised in the

         23  community.  We do serve a lot of fried foods.  With

         24  nutritionists and doing research and experimenting

         25  to make sure that we could make a healthy product
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          2  and alternative products for the consumer, we did

          3  not substitute taste.  The cost difference that we

          4  incurred was not substantial enough for us not to

          5  make that decision, and we did not pass it on to the

          6  consumer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

          8  much, and thank you for what you service in our

          9  community.

         10                 MR. WOODS:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         12  much, gentlemen. I think we're so interested in this

         13  issue that the next Hearing is going to be a field

         14  trip to each and everyone of your restaurants. But

         15  because of new laws and regulations, we have to pay

         16  on our dime, so that will be fine.  We'll go

         17  incognito.  Thank you very much, gentlemen.  I

         18  apologize.  Council Member Vallone does have one

         19  question.  I do apologize.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I also

         21  wanted to thank all three of you.  I mentioned

         22  Sylvia's before for coming down today. It's not

         23  easy.  You actually have businesses to run.  This is

         24  our job.  I always try to anticipate what's coming

         25  up later, and the restaurant industry just handed me
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          2  some of their testimony because I am supposed to be

          3  leaving.  They're going to testify that this is

          4  going to have a dramatic impact on restaurants and

          5  straight from the testimony it says, small and

          6  family owned independent operators who have the

          7  fewest resources would be hit the hardest, facing

          8  dramatic changes to their menus, their pricing and

          9  their business models.  I know that some of you are

         10  family owned and relatively small.  Have any of you

         11  found that to be the result of your voluntary

         12  efforts?

         13                 MR. BARBIERI:  I'm probably the

         14  smallest operator here, and we haven't had any

         15  problems whatsoever.  We've always been very

         16  compliant, and as I said, I've always used trans fat

         17  free oils.  I see the only prices in oils and butter

         18  fluctuates with the market not because we're using

         19  special oils.

         20                 MR. GIARRAPUTO:  I think if you look

         21  at the volume of oils and fats that are used in the

         22  restaurants, fry oil is probably the biggest use,

         23  and there are so many different types of oils now

         24  available for frying.  The substitutes are so

         25  readily available, and the market is driving the
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          2  cost down widely. I don't see it having a tremendous

          3  impact.  The other area that hydrogenated oils are

          4  often times used is in baking, and, again, with

          5  shortenings being developed that have zero trans

          6  fats, the market place is driving the development of

          7  viable, economically viable substitutes.

          8                 MR. WOODS:  Basically, I've been

          9  experiencing the same thing.  I've seen the market

         10  slowly coming down with the demand.

         11                 MR. VALLONE:  That's what I believe

         12  you had said, I just wanted to clarify.  I think

         13  their point may be that if more major cities like

         14  New York start doing this, it will maybe put too

         15  much of a demand on a small resource and then

         16  increase the price. I'm going to look forward to

         17  hearing from them, or at least our Chair will.  I

         18  just wanted to make sure that's not happening now,

         19  and I thank you all very much for coming down here

         20  and saying that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you,

         22  gentlemen.  The next panel will be from the New York

         23  State Restaurant Association, Mr. Charles Hunt,

         24  Sheila Weiss from the National Restaurant

         25  Association, nutrition policy analyst, and Richard
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          2  Lipsky (phonetic) from the Neighborhood Retail

          3  Alliance.  Thank you very much.  Now you can decide

          4  who goes first.  I would say ladies first.

          5                 MR. HUNT:  We already flipped a coin,

          6  and I won.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  You already

          8  flipped a coin. See that's a more politically

          9  correct way to do it.  Go right ahead flip the coin.

         10                 MR. HUNT:  Good afternoon, my name is

         11  Chuck Hunt. I'm the Executive Vice president of the

         12  New York State Restaurant Association.  We

         13  represent, as members, about 3,000 of New York

         14  City's restaurants, and we often speak in terms of

         15  the 26,000 food service establishments in New York

         16  City.

         17                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         18  discuss Intro 517 regarding the prohibition and use

         19  of products containing artificial trans fats by food

         20  service establishments.  We've examined this

         21  proposed legislation, and it appears to mirror the

         22  regulation invoked by the New York City Board of

         23  Health in December.

         24                 I wish to make it very clear that we

         25  do not disagree that a move away from the use of
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          2  products containing trans fats by New York City's

          3  restaurants is advisable.  Fortunately, action by

          4  the Council will give the food service industry the

          5  opportunity to raise some issues that were not, in

          6  our opinion, given adequate consideration in the

          7  action by the Board of Health in December.         We're

          8  particularly concerned that overlooking the need for

          9  further education on this issue among the City's

         10  restaurants, coupled with an enforcement policy

         11  which includes significant fines and a mandated time

         12  span of only 18 months, could be harmful for New

         13  York City's restaurants, the City's largest private

         14  sector employer of over 200,000 food service

         15  workers.

         16                 As you may have observed, in respect

         17  to this issue New York City must no longer be dubbed

         18  the "Big Apple" but now rather should be called the

         19   "Big Domino."  The Board of Health's action on

         20  trans fats has triggered a nationwide and indeed an

         21  international movement to switch to trans fat free

         22  products.  Many states, cities and other

         23  jurisdictions, through a legislative process rather

         24  than by appointed agency, have passed or are

         25  considering trans fat bans.  As well, practically
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          2  all of the huge quick service chains are now making

          3  the change throughout their networks.

          4                 In fact, the reason all restaurateurs

          5  have not switched to trans fat free options is that

          6  there are simply not enough suitable trans fat

          7  products and oils on the market today in sufficient

          8  quantity.  This is truly a farm to table issue.  It

          9  takes time to develop, plant, harvest and process

         10  new alternative crops to test new oils.

         11                 I'm including with my testimony a

         12  copy of an article appearing in the February 26,

         13  2007, issue of Nations Restaurant News, a nationally

         14  circulated weekly trade association publication, and

         15  I ask that it be included in the record of this

         16  Hearing.

         17                 This article discusses the potential

         18  product shortage in detail.  I ask that you take the

         19  time to read it.  In addition to serving customers,

         20  New York City's restaurants are customers as well.

         21  I'll skip that part.

         22                 The Department of Health clearly has

         23  not considered the impact of the small businesses of

         24  New York City, the small restaurants that are the

         25  backbone of many communities within the City.  I
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          2  thank Council Member Vallone for reading this for

          3  me. The ban threatens popular dishes and affordable

          4  menus, all of which are critical to economic

          5  survival in a business where the typical profit

          6  margin is around three cents on every dollar spent

          7  by their customers.

          8                 In the City's ethnic restaurants, who

          9  provide such an extraordinary range of dishes from

         10  around the world, will also be impacted.  While it's

         11  relatively easy to find trans fat free substitutes

         12  for some foods, many classic New York and ethnic

         13  dishes are more difficult to prepare in this way

         14  whether it's cannoli, eclairs, egg rolls or fresh

         15  baked cookies.  The outreach and education by --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Mr. Hunt, if you

         17  can --

         18                 MR. HUNT:  I'll finish up.  The

         19  outreach and education by the Board of Health

         20  clearly needs to be extended over a longer period.

         21  That's really what we're asking for here is more

         22  time.

         23                 Our industry wants to work with

         24  government and do what is in the best interest of

         25  our customers health, the City's economy and our
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          2  restaurants.  We look forward to the opportunity to

          3  establish an ongoing dialogue with the Council

          4  urging them to make appropriate amendments to their

          5  proposal, particularly in terms of the time frame

          6  towards a shared goal of providing restaurant

          7  customers with the safest possible experience when

          8  they dine in or from one of our restaurants.  Thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         11  much, Mr. Hunt. Next we'll have, who won the coin

         12  toss?

         13                 MS. WEISS:  I did.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Sheila did,

         15  okay.

         16                 MS. WEISS:  Well, good afternoon.  My

         17  name is Sheila Weiss I'm a registered dietician and

         18  the Director of Nutrition Policy at the National

         19  Restaurant Association.  I would first like to thank

         20  Council Members Rivera and Vallone and the New York

         21  City Council for this opportunity to testify before

         22  you regarding the Intro 517 to ban trans fat in

         23  restaurants in New York City.

         24                 I would also like to begin by saying

         25  that it has been clear from this morning's
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          2  discussions that our industry is moving away from

          3  trans fats and has been doing so for years.  The

          4  process of testing and locating alternatives takes

          5  time in order to make sure that we maintain the

          6  taste and quality of our foods.  And we will

          7  continue to do so even without bans.

          8                 The National Restaurant Association

          9  and the nation's 935,000 restaurant and food service

         10  locations have long been committed to promoting

         11  nutrition and healthy lifestyles.  But if you recall

         12  in the early 70's and 80's there was a dramatic

         13  shift away from saturated fats in response to the

         14  scientific community and consumer concerns about

         15  cardiovascular disease.  In our haste to move away

         16  from saturates, the industry replaced one bad fat

         17  with another.  We must learn from history, and we

         18  must break the cycle.

         19                 So, in our hurry to replace trans

         20  fat, we must ensure that we are not simply returning

         21  to saturated fats, but rather that we find

         22  healthier, sustainable alternatives.  Those

         23  alternatives are out there, and we support the

         24  restaurant industry making great strides in reducing

         25  and eliminating artificial trans fats from our menu
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          2  items.

          3                 Many of our restaurants, like I said,

          4  have found acceptable alternatives without mandatory

          5  bans and will continue to do so.  The food industry,

          6  including restaurants, continues to work on product

          7  formulations to eliminate trans fat in food items.

          8  But, as stated earlier, we need more time and

          9  prematurely making switches in product formulation

         10  can lead to unintended consequences.

         11                 One of the major issues that some

         12  restaurants are facing is that of the supply of

         13  trans fat free oils.  This is no longer just a New

         14  York City issue.  As more cities and states

         15  implement bans, the supply will be more of a hurdle

         16  for our restaurants.  We are committed to providing

         17  nutritious food to our customers, and we look

         18  forward to working with our members and state

         19  partners in the future towards the common goal of

         20  educating consumers and making nutritious and

         21  wholesome choices available.

         22  Thank you again for this opportunity.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         24  much and Mr. Lipsky.

         25                 MR. LIPSKY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2    I saw when the Department of Health did the

          3  original Hearing, there was a quote in the paper

          4  from the chef at the Four Seasons.  They asked him

          5  if he was concerned about the ban.  He said, no we

          6  only cook with butter.  I think that what we need to

          7  do here is to look at some serious issues, and I

          8  think that the legislation as it is constructed

          9  should be evaluated to consider these issues.

         10                 Number one, is there adequate supply,

         11  and will there be adequate supply?  I would say and

         12  encourage you very strongly to take everything that

         13  is said by the Department of Health with a grain of

         14  trans fat or a grain of salt or whatever it is.

         15  They have absolutely zero knowledge of the economic

         16  infrastructure that supplies restaurants.

         17                 Just as I would not come up here and

         18  testify about cardiovascular diseases and all those

         19  other things, I don't think that you can take what

         20  they're saying with anything but wishful thinking on

         21  their part.  Because as Sheila Weiss is saying,

         22  there is a serious demand structure being put on the

         23  supply chain.  If it's not there, then what happens?

         24

         25                 Then we go back to the issue of
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          2  inspectors and training.  Will there still be

          3  inspectors coming into the restaurants when supply

          4  has not been adequate to meet their demand? So

          5  something has to be put into place in this

          6  legislation that is a fail safe mechanism if in case

          7  supply is not adequate to demand. I don't know how

          8  that's done, but I see some very intelligent Council

          9  with you, and I think that you can figure that out.

         10  I don't think that you should take it at face value.

         11

         12                 But one of the things that is very

         13  clear here, and it's true of everything that the

         14  Department of Health or the Board of Health does,

         15  they do not do cost benefit analysis just like the

         16  FDA does when the FDA has a serious health issue

         17  that they want to address when it impacts the food

         18  chain.  The Department of Health and the Board of

         19  Health do not care about the economic impacts on the

         20  local restaurant or food stores.  You people should.

         21                 The last thing I'll say here is that

         22  this Hearing have preceded, preceded the Board of

         23  Health Hearing.  It should have been looking at

         24  legislation.  The Board of Health or the Department

         25  of Health should have done regulations pursuant to
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          2  legislation.  This is really ass- backwards as far

          3  as the legislative process is concerned.  But we are

          4  glad you're doing it because it's an important thing

          5  to get this information out.  Thank You.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  How do you

          7  really feel?

          8                 MR. LIPSKY:  More serious comment

          9  will be off the record.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay.  My

         11  question is primarily how do you see the supply and

         12  demand structure not being met in the time frame?

         13  What extended time frame are you looking for, and

         14  how do you think the industry on a national level,

         15  the major suppliers are going to catch up to the

         16  demand in the New York City area?

         17                 MS. WEISS:  Well, first off I think

         18  it's important to note that, as Chuck said, this has

         19  become a domino effect.  We saw legislation just

         20  passed in Philadelphia two weeks ago.  This is

         21  something that is going across the nation.  We've

         22  been speaking with oil companies and oil producers

         23  about the supply issue, and, quite frankly, we

         24  haven't gotten a specific number, but I can tell you

         25  that more time is needed.  Six months is not
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          2  adequate in terms of supply.  An additional six

          3  months or a year would be acceptable or even longer.

          4

          5                 I think one of the important aspects

          6  aside from supply, we're not arguing that there

          7  aren't great alternatives out there, but not one

          8  alternative works for everybody.  It takes time to

          9  test these products.

         10            We spoke to one local operator in New York

         11  City who has about 15 restaurants in the area, and

         12  he said that several months ago he looked to move

         13  away from trans fats for his french fries, and he

         14  tested 13 different products.  That takes time.  In

         15  addition to finding the alternatives, it takes time

         16  to train staff on how to use these and how to use

         17  the fryers appropriately.  Many of these oils can

         18  last longer, as was stated, but it is a matter of

         19  training staff to change their habits so that they

         20  change the oil in the fryers appropriately.

         21  Everything takes time in training.

         22                 MR. LIPSKY:  Excuse me.  May I just

         23  say something along those lines.  I received over

         24  200 calls from media and other interested parties

         25  over the last three months, from around the world
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          2  not just New York City.  One of the most interesting

          3  calls I got was from a gentleman who owns a seed

          4  company in Iowa that sells seeds to the soy bean

          5  farmers.  There is a variety of soy beans called low

          6  linolenic soy beans that are used to create a trans

          7  fat free product.  He indicated to me that one of

          8  the problems that they foresaw was in convincing the

          9  growers to change their acreage to this new kind of

         10  soy bean in order to meet the -- I perhaps

         11  pronounced it wrong.  I'm sorry.

         12                 MS. WEISS:  No, no they're only grown

         13  in the U.S.

         14                 MR. LIPSKY:  These are only grown in

         15  the U.S., but he was concerned that it would be

         16  difficult to convince them to do this.  Seventy

         17  percent of the oils that are produced for frying in

         18  this country are made from soy beans.  But let's say

         19  all the farmers agreed to plant enough product.

         20  They wouldn't be able to plant it until May of this

         21  year.  They wouldn't be harvested until the fall of

         22  this year, and chances are the product for several

         23  months after that.  So I hope you take that into

         24  consideration.  I really think there should be an

         25  amendment to your legislation that changes the time
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          2  frame.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Anything to add?

          4                 MR. HUNT:  I'd add to that.  Don't

          5  take our word for it, but you should be working with

          6  the industry people to investigate whether, in fact,

          7  this is going to be an issue and then make that

          8  determination whether you think that the legislation

          9  needs to be adjusted accordingly or to put in place

         10  some kind of mechanism to try to decide that.

         11  Because we might see in the front page of the papers

         12  supplies not there, then what do we do with the

         13  implementation phase?

         14                 One last thing on the outreach that

         15  they've made to the industry.  They have, or they

         16  should have, the Department of Health should have

         17  been working with local, mentioned Latino

         18  restaurants.  They have not called the Latino

         19  Restaurant Association.  They have not called the

         20  Pangorian, the Greek Diner Association.  They set up

         21  some kind of elite structure that supposedly is

         22  going to be able to disseminate information out

         23  there.  They are very poor at doing grass roots

         24  work, and they haven't worked with the people who

         25  are good at it, and that's going to be a problem
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          2  when the first time that a local restaurant is

          3  informed about the trans fat ban, it will be a

          4  $1,000 fine that will give them that information.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay.  I think I

          6  lead into this a little bit earlier with one of the

          7  other panelists, is the difference in types of

          8  cuisines and foods that's going to be served in

          9  different types of restaurants.  I think what we've

         10  seen is there is a slight difference from

         11  restaurants like Sylvia's to restaurants like Blue

         12  Fins in the type of ingredients they use in their

         13  cooking.

         14                 Do we know the breakdown in the City

         15  of New York of one, how many restaurants do we have.

         16    I think we already know that number.  Two, how

         17  many restaurants are going to be seriously affected

         18  by this legislation.  And, three, what's going to be

         19  the actual time frame for the smaller suppliers to

         20  get from the big distributors.  Because I know we

         21  heard that the farmers are going to start growing

         22  them, then they have to get to the national

         23  distributors, then to the smaller suppliers, the New

         24  York City suppliers.  Do we know how long it's going

         25  to take for them to get it?
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          2                 MR. HUNT:  Well, perhaps this would

          3  shed a little light on it.  I believe Canada has

          4  either done a trans fat ban or they're considering

          5  it, and their time frame is four years.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Canada has done

          7   -- as a nation they've decided to do away with

          8  trans fats and their time frame is four years.

          9                 MR. HUNT:  Yes.

         10                 MR. LIPSKY:  But, Mr. Chairman, and

         11  again it gets back to the procedural issue in terms

         12  of the way in which the Board of Health did this.

         13  They proposed this in a very short time frame. They

         14  had a very narrow hearing process, and then they

         15  passed it December 6th.

         16                 If the Council had done this, these

         17  issues would have come up.  You guys are very good

         18  at investigating some of the factual claims that are

         19  put out in testimony, then you develop the

         20  legislation to determine or pursuant those factual

         21  claims.  To answer your question, I don't think we

         22  know. I don't think we know the answer to all those

         23  questions.

         24                 Those are the kinds of things when --

         25  I don't want to get into the issue that you're being
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          2  made famous for, but when we look at food packaging

          3  on the FDA, it took them three years of a due

          4  diligence process to do all the cost benefits

          5  analysis. That's what's been missing here, and

          6  hopefully it won't be a problem, but we don't know

          7  that because the Board of Health has no expertise or

          8  interest in doing it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay.  One of my

         10  last questions is going to be for Sheila as a

         11  dietician.  Have we done any long- term analysis to

         12  see how the transition to poly unsaturated is going

         13  to effect the omega 6 to omega 3 ratios and prostate

         14  cancers? Has there been any research on that?

         15                 MS. WEISS:  I'm not a medical

         16  researcher. Unfortunately, I can't answer that, but

         17  you bring up a good point as we move away -- If you

         18  recall 20, 30 years ago when we moved away from

         19  saturates like beef talo and lard, we thought trans

         20  fat was a great alternative.  It's not a saturated

         21  fat.  It has a great shelf life, but we were wrong

         22  clearly, and we want to move away from them but we

         23  want need to be cautious when we do so to make sure

         24  that we are looking at good alternatives.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  There's actually
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          2  research that's already been concluded in studies

          3  from major health institutions in the United States

          4  that show in men, in particular, prostate cancer

          5  increases with the use of poly unsaturated fats

          6  because of ratio or 20:1 omega 6's to omega 3's as

          7  opposed to the 6:1 ratio which is what should be in

          8  a proper diet.  So 10 to 15 years from now we'll be

          9  discussing the subject.

         10                 MS. WEISS:  I'll see you then.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:   I see no other

         12  questions.

         13                 MR. LIPSKY:  I just wanted to add if

         14  you saw "Sleeper," a Woody Allen movie, he wakes up

         15  like 200 years later. He says, this is amazing.

         16  Everything we thought was bad for us actually turned

         17  out to be good for us.  I think maybe we'll be in

         18  that same situation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  It's going to

         20  revert back.

         21                 MR. HUNT:  May I add just one more

         22  thing.  I heard when the Department talked about

         23  enforcement that they'd be looking at labels in

         24  restaurant store rooms. I asked an interesting

         25  question at a meeting that we had with the
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          2  Department of Health regarding this prior to their

          3  action.  My question was, who determines whether or

          4  not the labels are accurate?  How do we know that

          5  these manufacturers are really giving us what their

          6  label says?  And the answer that I got from an

          7  official in the Health Department was it's on the

          8  honor system.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  So hearing your

         10  concerns we know that this is going to take effect

         11  on July 1.  There is going to be an official three

         12  month grace period and that penalties and fines will

         13  be imposed the first of October.  I hope that the

         14  Administration will look into this and make sure

         15  that supply and demand are met and that if,

         16  unfortunately if not met, that hopefully a

         17  moratorium can be imposed, so that way the supply

         18  issue won't be a massive issue.  The last thing I

         19  think we want to see is all the restaurants in the

         20  City of New York imposed with heavy penalties and

         21  fines because the supply issue has not been

         22  adequately met.

         23                 I do urge the Administration to look

         24  into using the negotiation power of the City of New

         25  York with these suppliers and distributors to
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          2  hopefully get more resources to our restaurateurs

          3  who are trying to meet up with this issue.  Thank

          4  you.  The next panel will consist of Dr. Elena Rios

          5  from the National Hispanic Medical Association, Paul

          6  Kligfield, MD from the New York Chapter of the

          7  America College of Cardiology and NYU, and then Dr.

          8  Goldberg from the NYU Medical Director Women's Heart

          9  Program.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Did you flip a

         11  coin, as well, to see who goes first?  Press the

         12  button in the middle, there you go.

         13                 MS. RIOS:  Chairman Rivera and

         14  Members of the New York City health Committee, I'm

         15  honored to join you today.  I'm Dr. Elena Rios,

         16  President and CEO of the National Hispanic Medical

         17  Association.

         18                 We're a non- profit association

         19  representing over 36,000 licensed hispanic

         20  physicians in the United States.  The mission of the

         21  NHMA is to improve the health of Hispanics and other

         22  underserved.  Our foundation, the National Hispanic

         23  Health Foundation, directs research and the National

         24  Hispanic Health Professional Student Scholarship

         25  Program, and we're affiliated with the Robert F.
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          2  Wagner Graduate School of Public Service at New York

          3  University.

          4                 Hispanics are the largest ethnic

          5  group in the United States, 40 million people or 14

          6  percent of the population.  New York Hispanics are a

          7  young population with less access to health care

          8  services due to being the group with the largest

          9  proportion lacking health insurance, least

         10  educational attainment, high poverty rates, living

         11  in medically underserved areas, having few Hispanics

         12  in the health work force and little information in

         13  Spanish targeted towards our communities.

         14                 I am here today to support the

         15  proposed resolution of the Health Committee to ban

         16  artificial fat in food service establishments and

         17  mobile unit commissaries in New York City because

         18  the National Hispanic Medical Association supports

         19  policies that will change our environment to

         20  decrease cardiovascular disease and obesity in our

         21  society.

         22                 NHMA has partnered with the U.S.

         23  Department of Health and Human Service and the

         24  Robert Wood Johnson Foundation in a campaign for

         25  doctors to tell students and parents and teachers in
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          2  our middle schools in our communities to change

          3  their nutrition habits, not only in New York but in

          4  California and Texas, the states with the largest

          5  Hispanic populations.

          6                 Cardiovascular disease is the number

          7  one killer in our society, and according to the New

          8  York City vital statistics and health disparities

          9  reports, in 2005 just in New York alone, about 30

         10  percent of all deaths among Latinos were from heart

         11  disease.  Low income neighborhoods have 1.2 times

         12  the rate of heart disease than high income

         13  neighborhoods, and years of life lost due to heart

         14  disease is 20 percent for white and for foreign born

         15  New Yorkers and 16 percent for blacks.

         16                 Thus, a ban of trans fats can create

         17  a more resilient population.  Obesity has been

         18  recognized by the CDC as the disease with the

         19  greatest potential to lead to mortality from chronic

         20  diseases in our country surpassing smoking tobacco.

         21                 There have been several societal

         22  factors since the 1950's, such as TV diners, fast

         23  food restaurants, women working et cetera, that have

         24  contributed to the rise of obesity as an epidemic,

         25  and this is the first generation where parents will
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          2  be burying their children with chronic diseases seen

          3  earlier and earlier if we don't do something about

          4  it.

          5                 Not only are Hispanics affiliated

          6  with higher rates of obesity than the general

          7  population since they are a younger population, the

          8  rates of increase are greater for children and

          9  adolescents in all our communities.  Hispanics and

         10  other poor minorities will become afflicted with

         11  greater rates of diabetes, heart disease, cancer et

         12  cetera, and not only that, but mental health and

         13  depression which will all lead to serious issues

         14  like absenteeism from the work force, higher health

         15  care costs shifted to our clinics and hospitals, and

         16  lower quality of life and premature death.

         17                 So, in summary, the National Hispanic

         18  Medical Association supports this resolution of the

         19  New York City Health Committee to ban artificial

         20  trans fats because it will assist in decreasing

         21  heart disease and obesity and reversing the trend of

         22  premature death for all Americans.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         24  much.  Next.

         25                 MS. GOLDBERG: Good afternoon, Council
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          2  Member Rivera and Members of the Committee.  Thank

          3  you for allowing me to speak on behalf of Bill 517.

          4  I actually speak of being a busy New Yorker who goes

          5  out to eat a lot, as the daughter of a retired

          6  luncheonette owner in Brooklyn and a cardiologist.

          7                 Eating out in restaurants is a way of

          8  life for busy New Yorkers, and my patients, both

          9  with and without heart disease, eat out frequently,

         10  and statistics from the Health Department show that

         11  individuals in our City get one third of their

         12  dietary trans fat from restaurant eating.  I know my

         13  mom and dad ran a successful business, and my father

         14  never used trans fats.  In fact, when all of this

         15  publicity happened over the fall he told me he only

         16  used corn oil.  As a cardiologist, I know it's

         17  really challenging to get people to change their

         18  life.  After all, we give them a list of things to

         19  do, diet, exercise, quit smoking.

         20                 When you go to the supermarket, it's

         21  easy to pick out foods without trans fats.  There

         22  are food labels.  However, when you go to an eating

         23  establishment, that food is unlabeled, and you have

         24  no idea what the food is prepared with.

         25                 Trans fats, artificial trans fats
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          2  have no nutritional value and only have a

          3  nutritional downside.  They raise levels of bad

          4  cholesterol, LDL and lower levels of HDL

          5  cholesterol. Heart disease is a major killer in New

          6  York City, and the health care industry is a very

          7  important industry to the City as is the restaurant

          8  in the City.  I think that this is a unique

          9  opportunity of both industries to work together to

         10  improve the health of the citizens of New York City

         11  because, after all, dead people can't go to

         12  restaurants.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  A very profound

         14  statement. Next.

         15                 MR. KLIGFIELD:  Good afternoon.  I'm

         16  Paul Kligfield and I speak today as President of the

         17  New York State Chapter of the American College of

         18  Cardiology, so I represent most practicing and

         19  academic cardiologists in the New York City and

         20  surrounding areas. I'd like to depart from my

         21  prepared remarks because I think the issue of trans

         22  fats is basically a no brainer, and we're all on the

         23  same page that this needs to get out of the system

         24  and the issues that have been brought up today are

         25  really how does that happen?  And how do we make it
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          2  happen in the best interest of all New Yorkers?  I

          3  think I'd just like to address a couple of things

          4  that came up this morning.

          5                 The first is that heart disease is

          6  the big killer, particularly in our disadvantaged

          7  communities.  The likelihood of having heart

          8  problems so far outweighs prostate cancer as a

          9  medical issue that I think small issues about

         10  relative incidents that will be shown in clinical

         11  trials in years to come will deal with that. But I

         12  think that there is no question that we're going to

         13  save more lives by dealing with the heart disease

         14  issue than with other side effects of other agents.

         15                 The second is that I don't think it

         16  has been sort of suggested that we're starting from

         17  scratch and moving out into a new world where we

         18  don't know anything about what we're substituting

         19  for the trans fats.  The direct head to head

         20  prospective studies have clearly shown that trans

         21  fats are harmful with respect to saturated fats, and

         22  if everybody went back to saturated fats that is

         23  using trans fats we'd be better off.  So I don't

         24  think we're starting off from scratch.  We know

         25  something about this, and we know that the poly
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          2  unsaturated alternatives are much better than the

          3  saturated fats as well, so it's a matter of how's

          4  that's done.  But anything that moves away from

          5  trans fats is going to be a plus.

          6                 Then I would also say that what we're

          7  really talking about here and disagreeing about, as

          8  I understand it from what I've heard this morning,

          9  is how fast this should happen and how is the best

         10  way to make it happen.  I think we should all work

         11  together to make this happen as efficiently and

         12  expeditiously as possible. Those are my remarks.

         13  I'd be happy to answer any questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         15  much.  There's not too many questions because we do

         16  know very well that trans fats are not healthy for

         17  you, and the idea here is not an issue with that, so

         18  thank you very much for your testimony.

         19                 We have the last panel, Kelly

         20  Brownwell, Ph.D. From Yale, Rudd Center, then we

         21  have Michael Jacobson from the Center for Science in

         22  the Public Interest and Chloe Grey, Trans Fat Free

         23  NYC.

         24                 You can choose the order in which you

         25  begin.  If you have testimony, just give it to the
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          2  Sergeant- at- Arms, and you may begin.

          3                 DR. BROWNELL:  Thank you for having

          4  me.  I'm Kelly Brownell Professor of Psychology,

          5  Epidemiology and Public Health and Director of the

          6  Rudd Center for Food Policy and Obesity at Yale

          7  University.

          8                 I think there's several issues at

          9  work today.  One is the specific issue of trans fat,

         10  and one is the broader issue of who is controlling

         11  the long- term consequences of food, long- term

         12  health consequences.  The trans fat issue, I think,

         13  is one that where there is an easy resolution the

         14  restaurants can do it.  I can't imagine that supply

         15  of the oils for New York City itself will be any

         16  problem in that period of time that the Department

         17  of Health regulations stipulate, but I can't claim

         18  to be an expert on that.           What I can say is

         19  that I believe the industry is very concerned that

         20  elected officials and appointed officials are now

         21  paying attention to the long- term health

         22  consequences of the food they eat.  If ten people go

         23  to a diner and get tummy aches, the health officials

         24  are all over it.  If thousands of people die from

         25  the long term health consequences of food, people
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          2  have not been on to that until recently.  I think

          3  this poses a great threat to the restaurant

          4  industry, other parts of the food industry as well.

          5  So I think they are very frightened by this kind of

          6  thing.              They'll be even more frightened

          7  by the menu labeling than they will be by the trans

          8  fat because they can make this change quite easily.

          9  But as we go down the road, there will be more

         10  things that will be threatening to the industry, and

         11  we'll hear them ask for self regulation.  You'll

         12  hear words that we're doing a lot on the health and

         13  physical activity front, that we're really doing a

         14  lot to help consumers, but that isn't justified by

         15  their actions.  In fact, the restaurant

         16  associations, I think, has really let down its

         17  members.

         18                 If the restaurant associations had

         19  been smart, they would have predicted this coming

         20  three or four years back.  They would have started

         21  working with suppliers, and they would have worked

         22  with their members in order to make these changes

         23  instead of having to play defense at this particular

         24  time in history.  The same is true of menu labeling.

         25    Menu labeling is going to happen. It's just a
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          2  matter of time.  It may be put off six months, a

          3  year, but it will happen.  It will happen around the

          4  country, and the industry should be on top of this.

          5                 I'd like to end with the following

          6  comment. Economists have a concept called optimal

          7  defaults.  That is, we'd like set up the environment

          8  so that healthy behavior or the right actions become

          9  the default, and in the food arena the unhealthy

         10  behavior is the default.  Portion sizing, the

         11  relentless marketing to children, any other number

         12  of factors are making unhealthy behavior the

         13  default.

         14                 In order to make healthy behavior the

         15  default, as we do, say, with lead paint, and I think

         16  that was a wonderful example, we need to take

         17  action.  New York City is perfectly poised for this.

         18    It's a triple threat, if you will, because what's

         19  present in New York City is a very progressive

         20  Department of Health, a supportive Mayor who doesn't

         21  buckle to industry interests when it comes to public

         22  health, look at the tobacco example, and a City

         23  Council that's interested in this.

         24                 When you put those factors together,

         25  I think there really is an opportunity to break new
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          2  ground, not only for New York City but for the rest

          3  of the nation as well, so I'm delighted that you're

          4  interested in this issue as you are.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.

          6  Next, and we're going to try to adhere to the clock.

          7

          8                 MR. JACOBSON:  I'm Michael Jacobson.

          9  I'm the Executive Director of the Center for Science

         10  in the Public Interest, which publishes the

         11  Nutrition Action Health Letter. We're the largest

         12  circulation health letter in the world.  We have

         13  about 15,000 subscribers in New York City.  We first

         14  raised the trans fat issue with the Food & Drug

         15  Administration in 1993 calling on it to require

         16  labeling and have been following the issue ever

         17  since.

         18                 The evidence concerning trans fat's

         19  harms were, I think, well summarized by the Health

         20  Department, and because of the harms, we've called

         21  on the Food & Drug Administration to simply get rid

         22  of partially hydrogenated oil, so City Councils and

         23  Health Departments wouldn't have to spend their time

         24  on this issue.

         25                 We followed the Health Department's
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          2  proceedings, and I must say it was very impressive

          3  to see how they understood the issue, mounted an

          4  education campaign, monitored the ineffectiveness,

          5  as it turned out, proposed a rule, had a public

          6  hearing, got hundreds of comments and then modified

          7  their proposal and had a final sensible rule.

          8                 The deadlines give restaurateurs

          9  plenty of time to make changes.  It shouldn't take a

         10  baker a year and a half to figure out some new

         11  recipes, and for frying oils, the changes can be

         12  made overnight.  The supplies are ample.  New York

         13  City, as big as it is, the restaurants use only one

         14  percent of oils that are produced in the United

         15  States.  It's very small.  I think it was

         16  interesting to hear the several restaurant company

         17  owners.

         18                 We've seen the big chains change

         19  Arby's and KFC and Taco Bell and so on, and beyond

         20  that, we've seen Marriott change for its hotels,

         21  Carnival Cruise Lines, Disney and Universal Studio

         22  theme parks.  Small restaurants in New York and

         23  around the country are beginning to change with no

         24  problem in terms of price or supplies.  It can be

         25  done, and when you think about costs, you clearly
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          2  have to think about the costs of not changing, of

          3  delaying any regulation.  Every day of delay means

          4  more unnecessary deaths. That's a toll that's

          5  invisible to the bookkeepers, but it's happening,

          6  and a very important reason for the City Council to

          7  adopt this important bill just as it's written and

          8  not fiddle with deadlines or definitions.  Thank you

          9  very much, Mr. Rivera.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 MS. GREY:  Council Member Rivera and

         13  Members of the Health Committee, my name is Chloe

         14  Grey, and I would like to express gratitude for the

         15  invitation to speak on behalf of Trans Fat Free NYC.

         16    The founder of Trans Fat Free NYC, Joshua

         17  Rosenthal, is unable to attend today, and he

         18  expresses his regret for that matter, but I would

         19  like to testify in favor of passing Intro 517. I'd

         20  like to diverge from some of my earlier prepared

         21  comments.

         22                 Basically, Trans Fat Free NYC was

         23  formed in mid October, and we gathered more than

         24  1,000 testimonies from New Yorkers in favor of

         25  passing the Board of Health's limitations on trans
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          2  fat, and it really is an issue that's central to our

          3  citizens in our City.  I think it's very clear that

          4  the science behind emitting trans fats is

          5  straightforward.  Trans fat does lead to hundreds of

          6  coronary heart diseases, death in our City and

          7  thousands in our country.

          8                 One of the things that occurred to me

          9  in earlier comments is if 9,000 of the 23,000

         10  restaurants already in compliance with no trans fat

         11  use in their restaurants, we only have about 60% of

         12  the restaurants who need to change their recipes and

         13  change their buying.  That's something that can be

         14  accomplished in the time limits specified by Intro

         15  517.  I think we owe it to the country to become the

         16  big domino and have demand drive supply. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         18  much.  At this point I don't think any members are

         19  here to ask questions.  I think the point has been

         20  made very clear, and I think that what we will do

         21  from here is hope that the remaining restaurants

         22  that are not in compliance currently, the rule is

         23  not in effect yet as a legislative issue, will

         24  hopefully be given the information that they need to

         25  fall into compliance if they do believe that the
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          2  breakdown does fall between ethnic and non- ethnic

          3  foods, and the 9,000 probably don't have the need

          4  for those types of cooking oils and things of that

          5  nature.  So from here on in I guess we'll just move

          6  onto the next hearing.  We'll adjourn this one, and

          7  see what happens from there.  Thank you.  This

          8  meeting is adjourned.

          9

         10  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

         11  MARIA MORILLO

         12  MANAGER OF DARLENE'S RESAURANT

         13

         14                 I am the manager of Darlene's

         15  restaurant.  We serve Latino food, which includes

         16  Dominican, Mexican and American dishes. We have been

         17  in business for eight years and have passed all of

         18  our Department of Health inspections.

         19                 Darlene's uses regular soybean oil to

         20  fry fish, pork chops, and French fries.  The oil is

         21  less expensive than partially hydrogenated vegetable

         22  oil and is what we have used since we opened.

         23                 The only item in the restaurant that

         24  contains trans fat is our butter blend and we have

         25  already spoken to our manufacturer about finding a
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          2  replacement before the July deadline. Our supplier

          3  said that it shouldn't be a problem to find a

          4  substitute product.  We have checked the rest of our

          5  items, including hamburger buns and condiments, and

          6  they all have 0 grams of trans fate.

          7

          8  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

          9  DARIUSH MOZAFFARIAN, MD DrPH FACC FAHA

         10  ASSISTANT PROFESSOR OF MEDICINE AND EPIDEMIOLOGY

         11  HARVARD MEDICAL SCHOOL AND HARVARD SCHOOL OF PUBLIC

         12  HEALTH

         13

         14            Re: Limiting the use of trans fats in

         15  restaurants

         16

         17                 Dear Members of the Council of the

         18  City of New York:

         19                 As a cardiologist who has

         20  investigated the health effects of trans fats for

         21  several years, I extend my very strong support for

         22  limiting the use of industrially- produced trans

         23  fats (i.e., foods or products containing partially

         24  hydrogenated vegetable oils) in restaurants.  As

         25  reviewed in our scientific publication on the
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          2  cardiovascular effects of trans fats (New England

          3  Journal of Medicine, April 13, 2006), several facts

          4  validate the need for and importance of such a

          5  measure:

          6                 1.  The harmful health effects of

          7  trans fat consumption are not better established

          8  than for nearly any other substance in our food

          9  supply. Harmful effects of trans fats on blood

         10  cholesterol levels are well established: Trans fats

         11  increase the "bad" cholesterol and decrease the

         12   "good" HDL cholesterol.  Trans fats also affect

         13  other important risk factors for cardiovascular

         14  disease.  Studies in humans demonstrate that trans

         15  fats increase inflammation in the body, a potent

         16  risk factor for cardiovascular diseases and

         17  diabetes.  Trans fats also decrease the health of

         18  the endothelium, the cells lining the arteries of

         19  the body which are essential to cardiovascular

         20  health.  Studies in primates demonstrate that trans

         21  fats cause weight gain, especially increasing

         22  abdominal fat, which has the greatest metabolic

         23  consequences, and worsen insulin resistance, the

         24  precursor to diabetes.  The strength of evidence and

         25  the potential magnitude of harm greatly exceed those
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          2  of other substances such as mercury or pesticide the

          3  potential magnitude of harm greatly exceed those of

          4  other substances such as mercury or pesticide

          5  contaminants such as dioxins or PCBs, which are

          6  appropriately regulated to very low levels.

          7  2.  Extremely low levels of trans fat consumption

          8  are associated with significantly increased risk of

          9  heart disease.  In our analysis of prospective

         10  studies totaling approximately 140,000 men and

         11  women, consumption of 2 percent of total calories

         12  from trans fats, 40 calories a day, for a typical

         13  2000 calorie diet, was associated with 23 percent

         14  higher risk of heart attacks.  This level of risk is

         15  much higher than for the same calories from

         16  saturated fat; calorie- for- calorie, trans fats are

         17  the most harmful nutrient in our diet.  By our most

         18  conservative estimate 6 percent of all heart attacks

         19  would be prevented by elimination of 2 percent of

         20  total calories from trans fats, 40 calories a day.

         21  This is likely an underestimate of the full effects.

         22  3.  Citizens have no means of evaluating the trans

         23  fat content of meals in restaurants.  In contrast to

         24  packaged foods which now have standard labeling of

         25  trans fat content, it is impossible for a citizen to
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          2  determine how much trans fat is present in

          3  restaurant meals.  Mandated standardized trans fat

          4  labeling of all restaurant meals would be neither

          5  practical nor cost- efficient, given ever changing

          6  menus and diverse mixtures of ingredients of meals

          7  served in restaurants.

          8  4. Use of trans fats in restaurants can be limited

          9  without any significant effects on food taste, cost,

         10  or availability.  While industry often expresses

         11  concern that limiting use of trans fats will affect

         12  food taste or cost, no evidence exists to support

         13  this hypothesis.  Conversely, considerable evidence

         14  exists that use of trans fats can be eliminate

         15  almost entirely without any effects on food taste,

         16  cost, or availability.  Further, most trans fats are

         17  replaced by unsaturated fats.  This has been clearly

         18  demonstrated in both Denmark and the Netherlands.

         19                 In summary, considerable evidence

         20  exists for harm, and no reason is present, practical

         21  or otherwise, for using foods or products containing

         22  partially hydrogenated vegetable oils. Please do not

         23  hesitate to contact me if there were any additional

         24  thoughts or questions about my comments.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 12:47 p.m.)
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